
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 
 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 13, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 813 028 107# 
 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7-2, ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON JULY 6, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE 
CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE. IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR 

ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON. 
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number provided 
above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 

Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the meeting. 
Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address 
the Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three 
minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
July 13, 2022 
Page 2 
 
1. CONSENT ITEMS  
 

A. MINUTES 
 Approve Minutes of the June 8, 2022 Engineering, Operations, and Water 

Resources Committee meeting. 
 

B. CONTRACT AWARD FOR BANANA BASIN INFILTRATION 
RESTORATION 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve the award for the Banana Basin Infiltration Restoration 
Services, Contract No. 4600003154 to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. 
for a not-to-exceed amount of $127,068; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

 
C. CONTRACT AWARD FOR PLUMBING SERVICES 

Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve the award to provide Plumbing Services, Contract No. 
4600003151 to Pro-Craft Construction for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$300,000 over five years with a fixed price period of two years with three 
one-year options to extend with Consumer Price Index increases; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract. 
 
D. COLLECTION SYSTEM CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND 

OPTIMIZATION SERVICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT AND PROJECT 
BUDGET AUGMENTATION 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve an amendment to CDM Smith’s engineering services contract 
in the amount of $669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-exceed amount 
of $3,626,734; 
 

2. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System 
Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 
in the RO Fund; 
  

3. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and 
Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the NC 
Fund; and 
 

4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract and budget 
augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes. 
 
 
 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
July 13, 2022 
Page 3 
 
2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. RP-1 SOLIDS THICKENING PROJECT DESIGN CONSULTANT 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 3 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No. 1 Solids 
Thickening Building, Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering, Inc., 
for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393 increasing the contract from 
$13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase); and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

 
B. RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER RATIFICATION 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board ratify the change order for the 
construction contract for the Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main, Project No. 
RW15003.06, to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27. 

 
 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) 
 

B. 4TH QUARTER PLANNING & RESOURCES UPDATES (POWERPOINT) 
 
C. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
D. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 

UPDATES (POWERPOINT) 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
 
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN  
 

 
 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
July 13, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 DECLARATION OF POSTING  
 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least 
seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate 
in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1A 

 

           CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



 

  

 
 

 
 

 MINUTES 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA 
 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 8, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 

Michael Camacho, Chair  
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 
Marco Tule, Director 

 
STAFF PRESENT 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager  
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 

 Stephen Brown, Network Administrator  
 Andy Campbell, Groundwater Recharge Supervisor 
 Lucia Diaz, Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs  
 Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources  
 Chris Garcia, Environmental Resources Planner I 
 Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I  
 Joel Ignacio, Senior Engineer 
 Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 

   Scott Lening, Manager of Operations  
   Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering  
   Stacey Scott, Engineering Services Analyst 
   Daniel Solorzano, Network Administrator 
   Travis Sprague, Principal Engineer  
   Wilson To, Technology Specialist II 
   Ryan Ward, Associate Engineer 

 
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 

 Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager  
Kevin Asprer, Associate Engineer 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering  

 Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
 Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
 Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
 Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
 Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
 Jesse Pompa, Manager of Grants 
 Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
 Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
June 8, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 

 Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit  
 Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM, Senior Engineer 
  
  

OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 
 Maureen Erbeznik, Maureen Erbeznik and Associates 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chair Michael Camacho called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.  He gave the public 
the opportunity to comment and provided instructions for unmuting the conference line. There were 
no public comments received or additions to the agenda. 
 
 
1A – 1C.  CONSENT ITEMS 
The Committee:  
 

 Approved Minutes of the May 11, 2022 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources 
Committee meeting. 
 

 Recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-9, establishing the fee for 
IEUA’s services review of applications, plans and inspections for development 
connections;  

 
 and 
 

1. Award a construction contract for the CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit 
Improvements, Project No. EN17006.01, to Southern Contracting Co., for the amount 
of $1,027,480; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive 
changes;   

 
 as Consent Calendar items on the June 15, 2022 Board meeting agenda. 

 
 

2A – 2B.  ACTION ITEMS 
The Committee:  

 
 Recommended that the Board:  

  
1. Authorize the procurement of a skid-mounted rotary drum thickener system as 

a single source according to the proposal dated May 6, 2022, in the amount of 
$712,932; and 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-

substantive changes;   
 

 and 
  

1. Approve contract amendments for the Project Control Master Services Contract 
to CAPO Projects Group and KRD Management Consulting, LLC for an 
aggregate amount of $1,750,000, increasing the contract from $1,250,000 to 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
June 8, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 

$3,000,000 (140% increase) with a four-year term extension through June 2026; 
and 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-

substantive changes;   
 

as Consent Calendar items on the June 15, 2022 Board meeting agenda. 
 

 
3A – 3F. INFORMATION ITEMS 
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee: 
 

 Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Update 
 SARS-CoV-2 Wastewater Sampling 
 Regional Water Use Efficiency Business Plan Update 
 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 

 
 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that a new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Permit was adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa 
Ana Region, on June 3. This is a permit renewal of an existing NPDES permit issued in 2015 that 
the Regional Board had administratively extended after it expired in October 2020. NPDES permit 
must be renewed every five years. Starting in 2009, IEUA consolidated all the regional water 
recycling facilities under a single permit to streamline the permit renewal process and reporting. The 
new permit includes new effluent permit limitations for several compounds and metals. Other 
significant changes include requirements for an Asset Management Plan; Climate Change Action 
Plan; effluent toxicity limit; effluent toxicity reporting using TST statistical method; and effluent PFAS, 
1,2,3-Trichloropropane and primary maximum contaminant level (MCL) monitoring. 
 

 
4. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
There were no Committee member comments. 
 

 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Director Tule requested to be notified when the Cal Fire crews will perform the next Basin cleanup.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, Committee Chair Camacho adjourned the meeting at 10:58 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Denise Garzaro 
Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
APPROVED:   JULY 13, 2022 



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1B 

 

           CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Contract Award for Banana Basin Infiltration Restoration



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22162

Linked

https://www.dropbox.com/s/dawrxu3njtsz788/Jeremy%20Harris%20Construction%20Contract.pdf?dl=0


Contract Award Banana Basin
Infiltration Restoration 

Brent Ritzinger
RW GWR O&M Specialist

July 20, 2022



Banana Basin Recharge Site

west eastSa
n 

Se
va

in
e 

C
h.

2



The Infiltration Restoration Process
• Drain to Hickory Basin

—First by gravity
—Second by Pumping (IEUA staff)

• Dry Out Floors (2 weeks)
• Work Process

—Scrape material from side slopes
—Scrape material from floors
—Haul away material
—Rip and smooth basin floors

3



4

Pumping Banana Basin

APR 4, 2019



5

Track Walked Slopes



• Request for Proposal posted on May 11, 2022 and A non-mandatory site 
walk was conducted on May 18, 2022

• The site walk was attended by one firm

• One bid received on May 25, 2022

• IEUA and CBWM will cost share the Banana Basin work using the 
basin’s Pro Rata for Fiscal Year 2021/22 (IEUA 77% and CBWM 23%)

6

Contractor Selection

Bidder Bid

Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. $127,068.00



7

Recommendation

• Approve the award for the Banana Basin Infiltration Restoration
Services, Contract No. 4600003154 to Jeremy Harris Construction,
Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $127,068.00; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.

The Infiltration Restoration Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of Water Reliability 
to develop and implement an integrated water resource management plan.



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

1C 

       CONSENT 

      ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

N/A

Contract Award for Plumbing Services



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22164

Linked

https://www.dropbox.com/s/ya04twxu99s16sv/Plumbing%20Services%20Contract.pdf?dl=0


Plumbing Services Contract

Frank Sotomayor

Facilities Program Supervisor 

July 2022



• Plumbing services are occasionally needed to 
ensure a safe and clean environment for 
Agency staff to carry out essential Agency-
related business.

• Contracted Services Include:
—Hydro jetting
—Snake draining
—Leak repairs
—Fixture replacements
—Restroom restoration

2

Plumbing Services 



Proposal Evaluation

Selection Criteria
• Experience and knowledge of personnel 

(Individual or Company)
• Record of performance (work history)
• References
• Cost Rate Sheet
• Exceptions taken to the specifications

Three proposals were received on May 2, 2022, and were scored based on
predetermined weighted criteria.

Proposers  Ranked using Selection Criteria

1. Pro-Craft Construction Inc

2. SoCal Sewer Construction Inc

3.  GM Plumbing Corporation

3



4

Proposal Evaluation Results

The evaluation of the three proposals received 
concludes that Pro-Craft Construction, Inc would provide 
best value to the Agency.

—Best Value
• Past performance, cost, experience, references, and 

competitive pricing
—Contract term: 5 years

• Two years with fixed price
• Three one-year options to extend with Consumer Price 

Index increases
—Experience with IEUA

• Current service provider
• Staff is satisfied with their services
• Provided additional plumbing renovation projects



Recommendation

• Approve the award to provide Plumbing Services, Contract No. 4600003151 to Pro-Craft 
Construction for a not-to-exceed amount of $300,000 over five years with a fixed price period 
of two years with three one-year options to extend with CPI increases; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract.

The Agency Janitorial Services Contract, is consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Business Practices specifically the Efficiency & 
Effectiveness objective that IEUA will apply best industry practices in all processes to maintain or improve the quality and value of the 

services we provide to our member agencies and the public.

5



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

1D

       CONSENT 

      ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Service Contract 
Amendment & Projects' Budget Augmentation 

In late 2020, CDM Smith was awarded a consulting service contract to conduct the condition
assessment on 41 sewer siphons as part of the Collection System Condition Assessment and
Optimization project. This initial effort will lead towards CDM Smith’s development of a
comprehensive sewer system maintenance optimization program which will enhance Inland
Empire Utilities Agency's (IEUA) planning and maintenance of the collection assets. To-date,
CDM Smith gathered condition data on 39 siphons.

The current contract amount to complete the assessment of the last two siphons will not be
adequate due to the significant bypass efforts needed, larger volume for debris removal, and
extensive traffic control at each site. Staff is recommending an amendment to CDM Smith’s
contract for a not-to-exceed amount of $669,325 to complete the two remaining assessments.
This will increase the contract from $2,967,409 to $3,636,734 (23% increase). The proposed
contract amendment will support the development of a comprehensive sewer system
maintenance optimization program.
Staff is also recommending a total project budget augmentation to support the amended services
requested in the amount of $329,000 for EN19024 and $341,000 for EN19028.

1. Approve an amendment to CDM Smith's engineering services contract in the amount of
$669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-exceed amount of $3,626,734;
2. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset Management
Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 in the RO Fund;
3. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and Pipeline Project, No.
EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the NC Fund; and
4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract and budget augmentation, subject to
non-substantive changes.

$ 670,000

EN19024/Regional System Asset Management
EN19028/NRW Manhole and Pipeline

If approved, the total project budget for Project EN19024 will increase from $3,590,419 to 
$3,919,419 (9% increase) in the RO Fund and for Project No. EN19028, the project budget will 
increase from $915,000 to $1,256,000 (37% increase) in the NC Fund.

1000 10800 501000 127100 EN19024/EN19028

07/13/22
07/13/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N   Y

10500 160000 1271001000

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Service Contract award is
consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset
Management and Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will ensure that systems are well
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate
changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated
regulatory requirements.

On October 20, 2021, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the award of a construction contract
to Tharsos, Inc. in the amount of $168,540 for the Glen Meade Trunk Critical Repair Project,
No. EN19024.
On September 16, 2020, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the service contract with CDM
Smith for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,910,909 for the Condition Assessment and Optimization
of the Collection System, Project Nos. EN19024 & EN19028.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented, it will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1- PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Service Contract

Statutory Exemption

22157



 
 

Attachment 1 



Collection System Condition Assessment 
and Optimization Engineering Service Contract 

Amendment and Projects’ Budget Augmentation 
Project No. EN19024 and EN19028

Ryan Ward, E.I.T.
Associate Engineer

July 20, 2022



Project Overview/Location

2

Collection Sewer 
System

Brine Sewer 
System

Regional Sewer 
System

Collection Sewer System
• Two independent sewer systems
• Regional Sewer System
• Brine Sewer System

City BSS – Siphons RSS – Siphons

Rancho Cucamonga 4 -

Ontario 5 10

Fontana 3 4

Chino 1 14

Chino Hills - -

Claremont - -

Total Assets 13 28

Total Length of Assets 4,745 feet 9,601 feet
Brine Sewer System (BSS)
Regional Sewer System (RSS)



Project Goals/Objectives

3

• Goals
– Enhance asset data
– Develop risk management framework
– Support asset management best 

practices
• Objectives

– Conduct assessment, inspection and 
cleaning

– Develop maintenance optimization plan

Coordination
Development of Condition 
Assessment Implementation 
Plan

Implementation
Condition Assessments, 
Inspections, and Cleaning

Evaluation
Available Data and 
Information

Optimization
Collection System Enhanced 
Management Program

Path to Meeting Goals & Objectives

Recent Effort: 
Discovery of 

Potential Sewer 
Failure 4-inch hole 

in sewer line 



Project Status

4

• Status on Assessment, Inspection, and Cleaning/Optimization Program
– Substantially Completed 39 Siphons (out of 41)
– Cost to date:  $1,945,008 
– 2 remaining siphons requires additional funds to assess due to higher cost on traffic control/bypass/cleaning

ETS Siphon (BSS): 
Challenges -

bypass/cleaning/access

NSST Siphon 
(RSS): 
Challenges -
traffic/bypass/
cleaning



Project Budget and Schedule

5

Description Cost
Asset Management/Inspection Support (actuals/projected) $1,463,685 

Asset Management $471,687
Inspection Support $991,998

Other Engineering Consulting Support (actuals/projected) $75,000 
Engineering Consultant (GHD Contract)   $75,000 

CDM Smith's Service Contract (actuals/projected) $3,636,734
CDM Smith’s Service Contract $2,967,409
Amendment to CDM Smith’s Contract (this action) $669,325

Required Total Project Budget: $5,175,419 
Total EN19024’s Budget for RSS Assets $1,256,000
Total EN19028’s Budget for BSS Assets $3,919,419
EN19028 Current Total Project Budget (NC Fund): $915,000
EN19024 Current Total Project Budget (RO Fund): $3,590,419

Requested Budget Augmentation to EN19024 (this action) + $341,000
Requested Budget Augmentation to EN19028 (this action) + $329,000

EN19028 Total Project Budget (revised): $1,256,000
EN19024 Total Project Budget (revised): $3,919,419

Contract Milestone Date
Complete Condition Assessment Aug. 2022

Complete Planning/Optimization Dec. 2022



Recommendation

6

This project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management 
objective that IEUA will ensure the Collection's System is well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and 
meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve an amendment to CDM Smith's engineering services contract in the 
amount of $669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,636,734;

• Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset 
Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 in the RO 
Fund; 

• Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and 
Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the NC Fund; 
and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment to the contract, 
and budget augmentation subject to non-substantive changes.



 
 

Attachment 2 



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������	���	� �!� ����"�# �$���������������%�����& ����!'�'���	(( ((� ���)��	'�� �	�� ����'�'*	�'�����%��& ���++ ��'���(,(� ��	(( �(���-./0�123-451-�56738673-�92:4�;<�=>?@�>A?�@AB@C@?�;ABD�BE;<�FFFFF�?>G�DH�FFFFFFFFFFFI�JKJJI�LG�>A?�L@BM@@A�BE@�/AN>A?�7=O;C@�:B;N;B;@<�5P@AQGI�>�6RA;Q;O>N�S>B@C�8;<BC;QBI�DCP>A;T@?�>A?�@U;<B;AP�;A�BE@�1DRABG�DH�0>A�V@CA>C?;AD�RA?@C�>A?�LG�W;CBR@�DH�BE@�N>M<�DH�BE@�0B>B@�DH�1>N;HDCA;>�XE@C@;A>HB@C�YZ[\]̂_̀Za\̀bcd�]\e\]]\f�[g�̀h�ijklmn�̀Zf�i5P@AQGno�>A?�186�0=;BE�/AQp��M;BE�DHH;Q@<�NDQ>B@?�;A�4>AQED�1RQ>=DAP>I�1>N;HDCA;>�>A?�VD<BDAI�6><<>QER<@BB<�XE@C@;A>HB@C�C@H@CC@?�BD�><�i1DA<RNB>ABnoI�HDC�OCDH@<<;DA>N�?@<;PA�<@CW;Q@<�;A�<ROODCB�DH�qCDr@QB<�73stKJupKK�>A?�73stKJvpKK�>A?�<E>NN�C@W;<@�BE@�1DABC>QB�><�E@C@;A�>=@A?@?w�( ��'���%�"�x�(��� ��%����y�	�!�( �z'� (x�	!!(��& �%�++��'�{��	�	{�	�&$��1DA<RNB>AB�>A?|DC�<RLQDA<RNB>AB|<RLQDABC>QBDC�<@CW;Q@<�<E>NN�L@�C@W;<@?�;A�>QQDC?>AQ@�M;BE� }~������I�ME;QE�;<�>BB>QE@?�E@C@BDI�=>?@�>�O>CB�E@C@DHI�>A?�;AQDCODC>B@?�E@C@;A�LG�BE;<�C@H@C@AQ@p�( ��'���('�x����� �(	�'��x�( ���!��	�	{�	�&x�'(�� z'( !����� 	!$��/A�QD=O@A<>B;DA�HDC�BE@�>??;B;DA>N�SDC��C@OC@<@AB@?�LG�BE;<�1DABC>QB�5=@A?=@ABI�5P@AQG�<E>NN�O>G�1DA<RNB>AB�>�������� ��  !�
�}�
�
������������x���x������HDC�>NN�<@CW;Q@<�OCDW;?@?�;A�>QQDC?>AQ@�M;BE� }~������x�C@H@C@AQ@?�E@C@;AI�>BB>QE@?�E@C@BDI�>A?�=>?@�>�O>CB�E@C@DHp��~���������������������������������x�����������~������������#���������������������
�����"��~�������S/-37007-.I�BE>B�BE@�O>CB;@<�E@C@BD�E>W@�=RBR>NNG�QDW@A>AB@?�>A?�>PC@@?�><�O@C�BE@�>LDW@�5=@A?=@AB�3R=L@C�9DRC�;B@=<I�>A?�;A�?D;AP�<D�E>W@�Q>R<@?�BE;<�?DQR=@AB�BD�L@QD=@�;AQDCODC>B@?�;ABD�BE@�1DABC>QB�?DQR=@AB<p�'�+	�!� ��'� �"�'+'�' (�	{ ��,$� �!��(�'�&�'���$�X5�6RA;Q;O>N�S>B@C�8;<BC;QBo��FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�0E;W>r;�8@<E=R�E�������������������������������X8>B@o��������-ED=><�1p�9>N�I�q7�������������������������X8>B@o��@A@C>N�6>A>P@C���������������������������������������������������qCDr@QB�6>A>P@C�|�1N;@AB�0@CW;Q@��@>?@C��

��������������������������  �¡¢�£��¢¡¤¡£¢¥¦�¤¢�¤�¦§¥����̈ £

©ª«¬ª«««



���������	
�����������
����	��������������������� !���	��!" 	���#�



����������	��
�	�������������������������������

�

������������� !"#$�%&���'$�()"*�+$�,-.�/0)��1$2$�,.*�.3�2450'"�670*070"8�9-"./��:�;<�=04>�**�9#".?"�@A0.)��@9�B%;�C��+?>D"/7E� FGHIJGHIK�KL�MLIJNKNLI�FOOHOOGHIK�PIJ�QPNIKHIPIRH�STKNGNUPKNLI�LV�KWH�MLXXHRKNLI�YZOKHG�FOOHKO�[\]̂ _̀abc̀̀ d�VLe�YNTWLI�MXHPINIf�PIJ�gIOTHRKNLI��h"�'��'$�,-.�/0)E�@h��+407A�i�8�'"7�0."3�0.�+"57"4>"'������>��7A"�,.*�.3�2450'"�670*070"8�9-"./�� ,269&�7)�/*"�.��.3�/).3?/7�0.85"/70).8�)j�;��805A).�>�''"*8�i07A0.�,269k8�'"-0).�*�8"i"'�8�87"4� !++&��.3�>'0."�8"i"'�8�87"4� l++&$��m)�3�7"����7)7�*�)j�:<�>�''"*8�A�#"�>"".�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3��i07A�7i)��33070).�*�>�''"*8� @?/�4).-��,.7"'/"57)'�!"*0"j�+"i"'�@6,!n�:;o�:C��.3�@6,!n�:<o�::&�8/A"3?*"3�j)'�'"5�0'8��.3�/*"�.0.-��.3�0.85"/70).�0.�*�7"o���p(?."$��65).�/)45*"70).�)j�7A"8"�7i)�>�''"*8���55')q04�7"*��Brs�)j�7A"�)'0-0.�**��8/)5"3�805A).�>�''"*8�i0**�A�#"�>"".�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3�i07A0.�7A"�"87�>*08A"3�/).7'�/7�>?3-"7�j)'�j0"*3�i)'t$�l�8"3�).�5')-'"88�7)�3�7"��.3�4)30j0"3�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�.8�3"8/'0>"3�>"*)i��7A"�/)87�7)�/)45*"7"�7A"�'"4�0.0.-�j)?'�807"8�/).80870.-�)j�j0#"�.)7o�"7o0.85"/7"3�805A).�>�''"*8�i0**�"q/""3�7A"�'"4�0.0.-�5')D"/7�>?3-"7�3?"�7)�807"�/).3070).8�7A�7�30jj"'�80-.0j0/�.7*��j')4�iA�7��88?4"3�3?'0.-�8/)50.-��.3�0.070�*�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�..0.-$��u"."'�**����7�7A"�j)?'�'"4�0.0.-�807"8��7A"�j)**)i0.-�/).3070).8�."/"8807�7"���-'"�7"'�*"#"*�)j�5*�..0.-��".-0.""'0.-��).807"�/))'30.�70).���.3�i)'t�7)�/)45*"7"�7A"�/*"�.0.-��.3�@@mv�0.85"/70).8E��wNfWHe�KWPI�FIKNRNTPKHJ�xXLyOc�h?'0.-�j0"*3�'"/)..�088�./"��.3�0.�5'"5�'�70).�)j�7A"�@).3070).�988"884".7�,45*"4".7�70).�1*�.� @9,1&��07�i�8�3"7"'40."3�7A�7�j*)i�4).07)'0.-�i�8�."/"88�'��7)�#"'0j��8"i"'�j*)i�'�7"8��.3�5�77"'.8��7�/"'7�0.�807"8�0.�)'3"'�7)�5')5"'*��3"80-.�>�5�88�5?450.-�8�87"48$��z*)i�4).07)'0.-���?7A)'0{"3�7A')?-A���8/)5"��4".34".7��.3�j?.3"3�7A')?-A�7A"�/).7'�/7�/).70.-"./��i�8�/).3?/7"3�0.�+"57"4>"'����%$��mA08�j*)i�4).07)'0.-�/).j0'4"3�A0-A"'�7A�.��.70/05�7"3�j*)i�'�7"8�j)'�7A0'7"".�805A).8$��mA"�A0-A"'�j*)i�'�7"8�'"|?0'"3�@h��+407Ak8�7"�4�7)�'"o3"80-.��.3�'".7�*�'-"'��4)'"�"q5".80#"�>�5�88�5?450.-�8�87"48�7)�8�j"*��30#"'7�j*)i�iA0*"�7A"�805A).8��'"�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3$���YLIPe�}eH~gIOTHRKNLI$�mA"�>�8"�8/)5"��88?4"8�@@mv�0.85"/70).�j)'��**�805A).8�0.��//)'3�./"�i07A��9++@�o19@1�5')7)/)*8���**)i0.-�j)'�8).�'�0.85"/70).8�iA"'"�@@mv�0.85"/70).8�08�0.j"�80>*"$��h?'0.-�7A"�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�..0.-��8).�'�5'"o0.85"/70).8�i"'"�"45*)�"3�).�8"#"'�*�805A).8�7)�-�?-"�3">'08�#)*?4"8��5')#030.-�045)'7�.7�3�7��7A�7��**)i"3�?8�7)�'"j0."�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�.8��.3�i)'t�3?'�70).8�5'0)'�7)�4)>0*0{�70).$���wNfWHe�KWPI�FIKNRNTPKHJ��H�eNOc�+05A).�3"i�7"'0.-��.3�/*"�.0.-����/'070/�*�0.070�*�87"5�0.�5'"5�'0.-�7A"�>�''"*8�j)'���@@mv�0.85"/70).��/�.�#�'��80-.0j0/�.7*��j')4�807"�7)�807"��3"5".30.-�).�

����������������������������������������������������������



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�������� ����!���������"��"��#������� �����!�!�$��"����������!�%���!�����"������������$�����������&��!���!�����������������
��  ���"�����"� ���"�"�&��'"�������"&�����"�(������!���!�����""�""����� �"�&�������� �$���)���������*�������"�&���"��������!�"�$"���������� ����!�$��"������(�"������������""� �!����"�����+� &�������� �"��"������!�$��"��� ��������(�"����������!����������"�����,���-�*�(�����,*.���'��/0����1���*�$��"-������2���(������3����!��4�$�-'��'$�-�"��#�"���������������������������!���"&�����,��"��&������������ ������&��!��!�/2��$�����!"��56���#� ����������78� ��������������&���!�����!�������������"��"���!�"�&����
�� ���������
�����!�!�&������"����!����������
���!�$�&�""��
��##���������!��$��!��������
������"�� �����5��"�"�����(����&��!�#���!�#���!�(��-�"�����
����!�#����(��
�&������"��"��$��"��!��������5�	���	�����������)�!�����59��* ����,�� ����&����!�(�����!!����������$����$�&�""���!����##����������"�"����� &���������(��-����*�$��"-������2�����!��
�"��""#���55,:���"&��������,��"�!�$��"��� ���������+� &����"��#�&���������������"��(������"&��������"�����,���-�*�(�����,*.�27'�22�����1���*�$��"-������7�������"��������!"����$��� &����!���"�!�"��$�!�$���(���;<=>?�;<@A�BCD<EF�BG@HIJI<IKL�M=C<INODGGEC�;EP=EK>IKLQ��"���$�"�"�#���"�&��
�����(�"��""� �!������!���'$������"���"�(���!�����(�#���"�3�����
��#�(��-�$�� ���&������
�"��&�&����"����!������#��(���!�����!��
�$�&�""�&� &��
���9����
�#���!��������""������!�!�����& �����#�����5�	������� $����#�"��&�&����"�(����#���!����$��#��)������������#�� �"��!�������������!� �
�!�&����"����!����������!�
��!������"���,������$��������������������"��"��&�&����"����"�3���������(��-����""�����"�����"���"����#���!�(��-�&������
��������!���$���
����!��&� &�!�$�&�""�"�"�� "������"�����������#�#��('�����
��&��
"�����"������$�����"���,����"��#����������&���!�&� &"���!�&��
"��+��!"��������
�����$�!
���#������"��"�&���"��	�������"���#��(��"�&����"���"��������5�� ��
��	�����&���������#��5	�.�24'�2R��*�$��"-������S���!�5	�.�27'�22��*�$��"-����������&��1���$�!
���(����$����&��&�"�!������"&�����#���!��&������������� ���������$����������!���'��"�����"��&�&����"������!������#���������������
���!���"&��������!������"����������!������"�����#������������#���	���T"���������"� ����������!�&��� ������UVWWXYZ�[\�]̂ _̂̀_[aXb�c\\[Ỳ�̀[�d[Webf̀f�g_fb̂�h[Yi�59��* �����"���3��"���
��!!��������$�!
������� &�����#���!�(��-��"�&��&�"�!�$���(���j���������
���)�!�����&��&�"�!��!!��������(��-����&�������)��"�&����"���"���������k**,���(��$�����"����!������7���*,��"��
���$�������#���(���������"&������(��-���"�$����� &����!�"��#�����!������"���������*���"������4��l�m����!���������n	��������!��$���$������"�&���"����(������!�������""�"" ����������!���!�#�������"&���!�(����55,:����"�$����� &����!��������$�������#�����"�&�����5� &�����
�����&��������$������������"���(���� �����
�"���"����!�$���� &��"��!���!������"��������(�����!!��������#��!��
����!�#����!������#������&��1������	���T"��&�������"�"�  ���)�!����������$���$���(���!!��������#��!��
��"���3��"��!����� &�����������
���!���"&������(��-��9�"��&����"�#��������������� �#����(�������$������!����"��$���-!�(��#�������"�&�������������"�����!�!��������� ���"��

opqrstuv�wvxyzp{y�|o}�~�~���������������������o�����owww��



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !"#$%#&'� () # �*&"�+,,#%#&')-�.**&"%� . %/�0& %�() ��+1�',1�'%�2!&$��3&"%4�25 %�1�2&6%4�7"6'8�93227:;<=>;?@A�26B%) 8�C/;/;@D� E�F�GG�FHIF��
���J��K�F����K��LL����K����K����II�J�K��M�����K�HN�K��LL������
��M���J��FM���OK���K� �P���������QQQ��.) %�"�7"6'8�2�R�"�9.72:@S?>@SSA�26B%) 8�C/C/C?D� T�
M���KM�����K��F�K�J�J�U��G���J�K������GH�K��
�����VK��J�J�W��N�JH��K�����K��LL����K�������J�U�F�GG��
� �P�������X�QYZ�.'[#'��"#'[�\�])')[�1�'%� �JJ�K����������GK�
�K�������
�������
����J����J���K�����GG���K�J�W�KM�U�G���I��JI��K�L���J�W��N�� P�����������������_̂̀a�bcadecadf�ghifjf_k�l�������mmnopqr�26$$-�1�'%)-�+1�',1�'%�2!&$��s"&t��+t�'6��u6%*)--�9s+u:@S?>@SSA�26B%) 8�C/C/;vD� 	��U���K��K��J����K�L��W�K��F��������U���������GG�K�K��
��U���
��H�J�FHIF�J�U�F�GG�G�GK�I� �P����������ZZ��w&'%)')�x'%�"!�$%&"�y�-#�*�9wxy:@S<>@S?A�26B%) 8�C/C/CCD� 	��U���K��K��J����K�L��W�K��F��������U���������GG�K�K��
��U���
��H�J�FHIF�J�U�F�GG�G�GK�I� �P�������Q�Y����.'[#'��"#'[\�])')[�1�'%� �JJ�K����������GK�
�K�������
�������
����J����J���K�����GG���K�J�W�KM�L���J�W��N� �P����������Y����ghzzkacadf_k�bcadecadf�ghifjf_k�l�������p{|oq}}�() ��)',�26$$-�1�'%)-�+1�',1�'%�7&%)-��~�����;A@<@A?C?���3&"%4�25 %�1�2&6%4�7"6'8�93227:;<=>;?@A�26B%) 8�C/;/;@D�����������������������/�O�FM���OHUK�GN���������G���JH���U��������Z�������M����������J��X����J��I�K�����	���G�FM���G�GK�I����M�����
�����G�F��UHJ
�K�L���KM�G�G�K���GGHI�J�KM�K�KM��F��������U�����G��H�J�U���G���K�J�K��G��H����������
���J���GK�HK����W�KM�HK���U�F�GG����H��K��M�
M���KM����VF�K�J�L��W��K�G�KM�K�����K�U����JH�J������U���
��H�J�U�F�GG��G����GG����K������W�G�L����GG�K��KM��HFGK���I���J�J�W�GK���I�I��M���G���J�K���IF��K��KM��������
���J���GF�K�����L�U�KM�U�����G����M�G�G�K���G�F��K�H�������IF���K�J�L���U�F�GG�FHIF��
�����H����
�KM��HG���L����IF�����G��L���IH�K�F�����GG��
G��L�KM��M�������K�HN�K��LL�N�J��M���J��FM���OK���K���J���UH���J�F��K�����L�U�F�GG�F�F��K����II�J�K����GG�K��KM����K�����O�������N��	����GH�K�K����W�KM�KM����K���L���K������KM��HG���L����IF�����G�����KM�G�UHG��GK���K�W�������GG�K�K��I����GHUGK��K����K��LL����K�������HJ��
���K��H�HG�L��

��G�K����
H��K��KM��GF��J���J�K�HN���GG�K����JHGK�����J����W��G�W�KM���KM��W��N��������M���JJ�K�������GKG�L���F������
��U�F�GG�FHIF��
����J�K��LL����K�����G����H���J�U��W��N�F��I�KG��������HJ�J����KM���U�����GK�I�K��K���IF��K���E�G�J����G�FM�����L�
H��K������J�J�U��G����HI�G����H�K���J����G�I�����U�����G�W���G�GK�I�G�FM��G��G�V�J��G��L�������
���J���GF�K��������F����K�J�L���KM�G�G�K����M��U�G��F��F�G���G�F���GGHI�G�KM�K��M���J��FM���OK���K�W�������J�K����I�����F�����J�KM�K�������
���GF�K����GM�LKG�W����U��GK�
�J��K���
MK��HKG�J���L�K�F����K�HN�K��LL�����GH�K��
����G�V�W��N��
�J��G��GK��KM��
����GG�KW������J���W��NG��U�F�GG�W�H�J���I�������F����KM��H
M�W��N��J����KM�H
M���K��F���K�J�������J���K���IF��K��KM��W��N����
���
�J�GHGG���G�W�KM���K���L���K�����I�������W�L�����F��K�������LH���GK���K���GH���KM�K�W�H�J�����W�L���G�IF��L��J�U�F�GG�FHIF��
���J�J�HU���GM�LK��
��L�������
���GF�K����W��N�WM�M�

������ ¡�¢¡£¤¥�¦¤�§�̈�©ª©«¬¬«®«̄««®°̄®±²ª°®�°«²³±�¢¢¢́ ¯



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

������ �
��!���"���������"#��� " ��  ���"�����"#�$�%�  �%�&%��
�����"��!!����"�����"�"#� � �"�����'()*+,-�.,/-0�1'.2345674558�2/9*()0�:;:;:6<�=�>?@A�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L������M�� ������
�� ��
��N$��������OONPQ����N������&�"�����RS�P������S��� �%#�����T#� � �%#���� ����"������� "���&��!��� "����T���L���TKU���N��O��K�$"� L������V����#�#�� ���"����$�����W#�$�"��� �
��!���"���#�
#�����$�� �����&����&���"�����#��������������������������"#���"#���"#��� �%#�� ��������������"#� ���"��"���X� ������"#��SY��K&�"#�T��&Z �����"��W%��������"�"#�� �&������% "���&� �%#������"#�� �&��"���L� ����� � "�&�����#�������� ����������L�%��������� "�&�"��"���&%��"��"��������!����W"���������L�����"���������  ���"���!�������
� "� ��T#������"������� " ��  ���"�����"#�#�
#���"#�����"��%�"�����$�� ���&�������W"���������L�����"�����$�%�  �%�&%����"��� �"�%������%���"���������"��!!����"����� ���[������$�����L�%��&�" ����������������"#���$����� "�&�"��"���&%��"���X� ��������������"��W%��������"��% "���&� �"���TKU���N��O�������"��%�"���%�"�� �W"���� #�!" ��!�������
������� %�"����!���"#� � �"����T#��S�"���!�\�"�����#� ���!��&���"#�"���!���� "���"��� �������$����&&���"���!���"#� � �"��� �&%��!���
�"#��$�%�  �%�&%��
�����"��!!����"�����]��#�����  �&������$��N #�!"��
��!�"#��������
������� %�"�������L�� %�����
���"����� ������������ ����������%%��W�&�"����N����%�������� ,̂_̀+�à+-/+�b/*c(dd�1̂ab345674558�2/9*()0�:;:;ef<�=�GgJJhACADF?h�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L������i�� �������N$��������OO�PQ���#��OON�������OVN������&�"����RS��� �%#��� � "�&���X���������OON������ ���"���$�#�����W� "��
� "�%�%��"� ��� �����"�������������������� %�"���������"#�����
�������"��"����j���&$��������������T#�����
����� �%�k$��
�"�!���"#� � �"���  �&���!�������"#� �%�������� �%#��� � "�&�������$����"�������"#���
#�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���������
�%�  ���� �%#�������� ������"#��"�"#�������!���$�%�  �%�&%��
��l��������� ����� ��"��!���!���� "�������������"#��%��m�"�������������!� � "�&�#������� ���"��� ���"��&�����"#�"�!���N"#���
#�%��
 �������%�� ��"������ �!�� ��#��
������"������������$���
������%�&%��� � "�&�������$�����  ����"�������"�!�����#����"#�� �%#�� ������������������� %�"�����T#������"������� " �"�����"����� �"��%�����$���
������%�&%��� � "�&�����"��!!����"����� ���[������$�����L�%��&�" ����������������"#���$����� "�&�"��"���&%��"���X� ������ �%#�����!�
���"����������$�� �����&� ������"�������� �&�������
������ ����� � "�&� �%#�� ��"#������� ��!�������
������� %�"��������%��m�"���!���"#� � �"����n_-*(-(�o-*+,p+q*_,�r+ds+c�1nor345t74568�2/9*()0�:;:;::<�=�GgJJhACADF?h�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L��������� �������N$��������uV�PQ���#���iN��������vN������&�"�����S��� �%#��� � "�&���X���������VVN����� ���"���$�#�����W� "��
� "�%�%��"� ��� �����"�������������������� %�"���������"#�����
�������"��"����K�%"�&$�������������T#�����
����� �%�k$��
�"��  �&���"#�"�!�������"#� �%�������� �%#��� � "�&�������$����"�������� ��
�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���� "�%�%��"� ��� "���������"#���% "���&��������� "���&� �%#��� "��"��� ���������
�%�  ���� �%#�������� ������"#��"�"#�������!���$�%�  �%�&%��
��Y����
�!��������� "�
�"������"��� ��� �������"#�"�"#�� "�%�%��"� ������!��w����&�L��
�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���!�� �$�����Q������������  ������"��&�����"#�"�!�W��
�"#�� "�%�%��"� �"���� "����!��"������"��������$���%�"��N��"�� ��������� ���"������������"#�������"����L�%�������� "�&�"��"���&%��"���K����"#���&&���$��� "�%�%��"� ��$ "��"�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ������$���
������%�&%��� � "�&��� ���"��&�����"��$�����  ����"�������"�!�����#����"#�� �%#�� ������������������ %�"����T#��

xyz{|}~�������y����x��������������������������x�����x�����



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

������������ � ������������� ���!"�����#���
��!���"!$"��� � ��$��������%%���������� ���&!�����#��"��$���� ����!��������'���#����� ��$��������$"������(� ������ �"'�����%�
!�������������#�� ����!$� ����!���������� �$�������
������ �)��� � ��$� �"'�� ��%�!����� ��%�������
������� "����������"��*�����%����'� � ������+,-.,//0.,-123,3-/4/,56�� ��� ��#����#������'��%�����)��7��  �������)��'�������%���
������� �����
�%�����)��7���
� �� ��� �)����� �����������
��'���$"��$����������%� ��!���� ��'� ��� !���������������������
�������
�����$���
�$����� � ��#�����'��!������ �"������#!�
����8'� ���$��'� �#���� "����#��)�����'��#� ������ !""��$������ �"� ����$�9����#�������"�������%��:�#���������	��������!�'���9��
������������%�����)��7������;'�!�����!�'��������&!� ���� ���
�����
�<=��;$��'> � !#$�������"��� ��������8�$�?��7�����@A������B�CCD���������$�������%��7�E�$ $��'��$��;����������8'�$� �<��?��7�������<������;������F������G����*�������
���<=��;$��'�	����HIJ�� � KLMN�OMPQ�RSTUVWX�YZN�[MN\]�̂_ÌMab�c_deÌ_]�fZed�gZeNdhbZZQ�RHf̂ �ij_k̀W��VkkMÌjaNklJ�� VQQ_k_ZNMb�m_abQ�OZPn�Tlk_jMkal��� �

opqrstuv�wvxyzp{y�|o}�~�~���������������������o�����owww��



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !"#"� �$%%&%%'& #�( !�)(" #& ( *&�+,#"'"-(#"� �.%#"'(#&�#����',/&#&�0�1",2� �345456�78�9#2�1:%#&'�1�;#2�<9; =>�)(:�3633�� � � � � �8�4� ?#&'� @#:4� A "#� A "#���%#� <�#(/���%#��� �� �� �� �� ��B� C:,(%%�D;'," E� � � � ��F� GHIJKJLMNJHO�P�QRSHIJKJLMNJHO� B� KT� UVWXYZ� UVWXYZ�[� \RN]̂� B� KT� U_̀W_aF� U_̀W_aF�_� QJTMTTRSIKb� B� KT� U[̀W[à� U[̀W[à�Y� c]Ŝ �dRONMK� F� ef� UF[ẀBV� U_̀W_[X�a� c]Ŝ �gMNhi�MOj�k]RK� V� j� UYWFZV� U_aWXXB��̀ � � � � ��X� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UBXXWVVV�V� � � � � ��BZ� <9(||"*��� #9�/� � � � ��BB� }~M��Jh��HON~HKT� V� j� UYẀ̀ Y� UYBWV̀Y�BB� GJTh���KKHeMOhR��H~��HON~HKT� B� KT� UBZWZZZ� UBZWZZZ�BF� � � � � ��B[� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UaBWV̀Y�B_� � � � � ��BY� 1#9;*#;9(/�)�!"|"*(#"� %� � � � ��Ba� �H�TN~]hN]~MK�SHjJ�JhMNJHOT�~R�]J~Rj� Z� KT� UZ� UZ�B̀� � � � � ��BX� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UZ�BV� � � � � ��FZ� �/&( " E�( !�? %,&*#"� � � � � ��FB� �KRMOJO��MOj��OT̂RhNJHO� a� TiJ�NT� UXWF̀F� U_VWa[F�FF� � � � � ��F[� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� U_VWa[F�F_� � � � � ��FY� \]INHNMK� � � � U[ZZWaZa�Fa� �HONJO�ROhb� BZ�� � � U[ZWZaB�F̀� �� �� ���� ��FX� � � � � ��FV� <+<$�� �� �� �� ���6�����$%%;',#"� %� � � � ���� �KRMOJO��MOj�JOT̂RhNJHO�eJKK�Hhh]~�H�R~�a�jMbT�eJNi�TJO�KR�TiJ�NT�RMhi�jMb�� ���� c]Ŝ �~RONMK�P�N~M��Jh�hHON~HKT����TT]SR�a�eH~f�jMbT���F�eRRfROj�jMbT���B�TRN]̂�jMb����� \RN]̂�hHTNT�MTT]SR�U[Z���H~�I]~bJO��Ib̂MTT�̂ĴR�MN�RON~MOhR�NH��ONM~JH�\HhhR~cM~f��Q��� }~M��Jh�hHON~HK�MTT]SRT�OH�~HMj�hKHT]~R�� � � �� �

��� ¡¢£¤�¥¤¦§̈�©§�ª�«�¬¬®̄ ®̄°±®²®®±°³°²±́µ³±�³®µ¶́�¥¥¥·²



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��89898:�;#!+*('��<'=�>?�2!/�8@88�� � � � � �A19� �*($� B*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� <1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��C� D/%!++�E=$%&�-� � � � ��F� GHIJKJLMNJHO�P�QRSHIJKJLMNJHO� C� KT� UVWXYX� UVWXYX�V� ZRN[\� C� KT� UC]WX]V� UC]WX]V�X� QJTMTTRSIK̂� C� KT� U_WV̀F� U_WV̀F��̀ a[S\�bRONMK� F� cd� UFFẀeC� UX̀WCXF�_� a[S\�fMNgh�MOi�j[RK� CF� i� UeW]k̀� Uk̀W]Ce�e� � � � � ��k� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UC̀]WX]k�Y� � � � � ��C]� <'!||&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��CC� }~M��Jg��HON~HKT� CF� i� Ùek� U_WYV]�CF� � � � � ��CV� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� U_WYV]�CX� � � � � ��C̀� 6*'=.*='! �21"&|&.!*&1�+� � � � ��C_� �H�TN~[gN[~MK�SHiJ�JgMNJHOT�~R�[J~Ri� ]� KT� U]� U]�Ce� � � � � ��Ck� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� U]�CY� � � � � ��F]� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��FC� �KRMOJO��MOi��OT\RgNJHO��F��ThJ�NTPiM̂�� C_� ThJ�NT� UkWFeF� UCVFWV̀F�FF� � � � � ��FV� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� UCVFWV̀F�FX� � � � � ��F̀� Z[INHNMK� � � � UFkYW_Y]�F_� �HONJO�ROĝ� C]�� � � UFkWY_Y�Fe� �� �� ���� ��Fk� � � � � ��FY� <3<,�� �� �� �� ������:��,++=$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �KRMOJO��MOi�JOT\RgNJHO�cJKK�Hgg[~�H�R~�k�iM̂T�cJNh�iH[IKR�ThJ�NT�RMgh�iM̂�� ���� a[S\�~RONMK�P�N~M��Jg�gHON~HKT����TT[SR�k�cH~d�iM̂T���F�cRRdROiT���F�TRN[\�iM̂���  HgMK�gHOORgNJHOT�M~R�JO�RTNJ�MNRi�MOi�JN�JT�MTT[SRi�T[~ghM~�R�CF�̀��N��~HS�JO�R~N�JT�¡¢������ }~M��Jg�gHON~HK�MTT[SRT�~HMi�gKHT[~R�� � � � �

£¤¥¦§̈©ª�«ª¬®¤̄�°£±�²³²́µµ́¶·́¸́ ·́¶¹¶̧·º»³¹·£¹́»¼º£«««½̧



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��8989:;�<='1>(�,>(�?(�3?*@!  A�2!/�8B88�� � � � � �C19� �*($� D*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� E1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��F� G/%!++�H?$%&�-� � � � ��I� JKLMNMOPQMKR�S�TUVKLMNMOPQMKR� F� NW� XYZ[\]� XYZ[\]��̂ _UQ̀a� F� NW� XF\Zbb\� XF\Zbb\�[� TMWPWWUVLNc� F� NW� XFIZ]bb� XFIZ]bb�b� d̀Va�eURQPN� F� fg� XFIZ]h[� XFIZ]h[�\� d̀Va�iPQjk�PRl�m̀UN� �̂ l� XhZ[Î� XIIZI\Y�h� � � � � ��n� opqrss�tuvqwxy�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� XhIZ[F[�Y� � � � � ��F]� E'!@@&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��FF� ��P��Mj��KRQ�KNW� �̂ l� X[Z\I]� XF̂Zn\]�FI� � � � � ��F̂� ��r��w���}x|�}~�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� XF̂Zn\]�F[� � � � � ��Fb� 6*'?.*?'! �21"&@&.!*&1�+� � � � ��F\� �K�WQ�̀jQ̀�PN�VKlM�MjPQMKRW��U�̀M�Ul� F� NW� X]� X]�Fh� � � � � ��Fn� z|�u�|u�r~��}�w�w�r|w}xs�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� X]�FY� � � � � ��I]� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��IF� �NUPRMR��PRl��RWaUjQMKR� �̂ l� XnZIhI� XI[ZnF\�II� � � � � ��Î� �~�rxwxy�rx���xsq��|w}x� �� �� �� XI[ZnF\�I[� � � � � ��Ib� _̀LQKQPN� � � � XFFFZ]Y]�I\� �KRQMR�URjc� F]�� � � XFFZF]Y�Ih� �� �� ���� ��In� � � � � ��IY� E3E,�� �� �� �� �:88�:���,++?$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �NUPRMR��PRl�MRWaUjQMKR�fMNN�Kjj̀��K�U��̂�lPcW�� � � ���� �caPWW�fMNN�LU�PNM�RUl�Qk�K̀�k�QkU�Pl�PjURQ�j̀N�U�Q�� � � ��� �

����� ¡¢�£¢¤¥¦�§¥�̈�©�ª«ª¬¬®̄¬°¬¬̄®±®°̄²³«±̄�±¬³́²�£££µ°



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��898988�:;1�*!�!���*('.(%*1'�<( &(=>�2!/�8?88�� � � � � �@19� �*($� A*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� B1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��C� D/%!++�EF$%&�-� � � � ��G� HIJKLKMNOKIP�Q�RSTIJKLKMNOKIP� C� LU� VGWXYYG� VGWXYYG�Z� [SO\]� C� LU� VẐXGG_� VẐXGG_��̂ RKUNUUSTJL̀� C� LU� VC_X̂ab� VC_X̂ab�a� c\T]�dSPONL� C� ef� VCYXYŶ� VCYXYŶ�Y� c\T]�gNOhi�NPj�k\SL� �̂ j� VbX̂ZW� VZZXŴ_�W� � � � � ��b� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� VCZCXWYZ�_� � � � � ��C|� B'!==&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��CC� }~N��Kh��IPO~ILU� �̂ j� VCXa||� VYX|||�CG� � � � � ��CZ� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� VYX|||�Ĉ� � � � � ��Ca� 6*'F.*F'! �21"&=&.!*&1�+� � � � ��CY� dSTI�S��IPS��I~�[\hOKIP�HNPiILS� C� LU� V̂ X̂Ca|� V̂ X̂Ca|�CW� � � � � ��Cb� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� V̂ X̂Ca|�C_� � � � � ��G|� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��GC� �LSNPKP��NPj��PU]ShOKIP� �̂ j� VbXGWG� VZZX|bb�GG� � � � � ��GZ� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� VZZX|bb�Ĝ� � � � � ��Ga� [\JOIONL� � � � VGCaX||C�GY� �IPOKP�SPh̀� C|�� � � VGCXa||�GW� �� �� ���� ��Gb� � � � � ��G_� B3B,�� �� �� �� �8����?��,++F$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �LSNPKP��NPj�KPU]ShOKIP�eKLL�Ihh\~�I�S~�̂�jǸU�� � � ���� HKPKTNL�O~N��Kh�hIPO~ILU�N~S�~S�\K~Sj�j\S�OI�NLK�PTSPO�� � ���� [\~hiN~�S�KP�OiS�KPOS~hS]OI~�eKLL�PIO�KT]NhO�J\KLjKP�U�\]UO~SNT�� � ��

������ ¡�¢¡£¤¥�¦¤�§�̈�©ª©«¬¬«®«̄««®°̄®±²ª°®�°«²³±�¢¢¢́ ¯



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2A 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

RP-1 Solids Thickening Project Design Consultant Contract Amendment No. 3

The Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1) Solids Thickening Project will improve the
processes upstream of the digesters and construct additional capacity to permit future
improvements that would increase the overall treatment capacity. During the review of the
Design Intent Memorandums, staff identified necessary modifications and additions to the scope
of the existing design consultant contract with Carollo Engineering, Inc. The proposed
amendment, No. 3, is intended to encapsulate these modifications in the design contract: (a)
analyze the existing plant capacity at RP-1 to better plan future projects; (b) add an additional
boiler to supply heat demand while maintaining redundancy; (c) re-evaluate a prior evaluation of
beneficial use of digester gas; (d) rehabilitate Disolved Air Floatation Thickeners (DAFT) 1 & 2
to treat scum from the treatment processes; (e) remove items from the scope that were originally
intended for demolition; (f) remove the planned 12 kV facility and associated appurtenances; (g)
consolidate the SCADA controls for the digesters into a single location; (h) update the asset
register to facilitate IEUA Asset Management processes; and (i) plan and provide an increased
level of treatment of digester gas based on needs identified in the design process. The contract
amendment to Carollo Engineering, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393, increases the
maximum authorized contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase).

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No.1 Solids Thickening Building,
Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393
increasing the maximum authorized contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase);
and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN22044/RP-1 Solids Thickening Project

None.

1000 10900 595000 127151 EN22044

07/13/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment
facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed,
and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

Awarded a consultant contract for the RP-1 Capacity Recovery, Project Nos. EN24001 and
EN24002 to Carollo Engineers Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $13,637,633 on December
20, 2017.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Proposed Amendment No. 3 to Project EN22044

Project Environmental Impact Report

22135



 
 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 Solids Thickening Project
Design Consultant Amendment

Project No. EN22044

Travis Sprague, P.E.
Principal Engineer

July 2022



2

Project Location (City of Ontario)

CA State Route 60

E. Walnut St.

IEUA RP-1

Solids Thickening 
Project Footprint

Future Liquid Treatment 
Capacity Project



3

Purpose

• Staff identified scope items to be added or removed from the project
• Scope Changes incorporated in Amendment No. 3:

Added Scope Removed
o Rehabilitation of Dissolved Air

Floatation Thickeners (DAFT) 1 & 2
o New boiler and gas system

improvements
o Stress Test / Capacity Analysis
o Updated Digester Gas Beneficial

Use Study
o Changes to SCADA control strategy
o Increased level of treatment for

digester gas
o Modified electrical service to new

facilities

o Demolition Items (Belt Press Building
and Other System Appurtenances)

o 12 kV Building (Deferred to Future
Project)

o New Southern California Edison (SCE)
Service (Deferred to Future Project)

o New Generators (Deferred to Future
Project)



Major Amendment Items

4

CA State Route 60

IEUA RP-1

New Solids 
Thickening Building

Deferred 12 
kV Building

Modified 
Electrical Service

Deferred 
Building Demo

DAFT Rehab &
Additional Boiler



5

Project Budget

Description Estimated Cost
Design Services $10,142,949
Design + Review Services $7,846,604
Amendment No. 3 $880,393
IEUA Design Support Services $650,000
Skid-Mounted RDT Trailer $765,952
Construction Services $10,000,000
Engineering Services During Construction (5%) $5,000,000
IEUA Construction Support Services (5%) $5,000,000
Construction $110,000,000
Construction Contract Estimate $100,000,000
Contingency, 10% $10,000,000
Total Project Cost: $130,142,949
Total Project Budget*: $133,080,000

Project Milestone Date
Design Contract

Final Design June 2023
Bid + Award Oct. 2023

Construction Contract
Notice to Proceed Oct. 2023
Close-out Aug. 2026



6

Recommendation

• Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No.1 Solids
Thickening Building, Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering,
Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393 increasing the
contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract
amendment, subject to non-substantive changes.

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management specifically 
the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet 

evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



Attachment 2 



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������	���	 !�" !����# $!�%������������������&#'�(�)�!�)(�!!�(�)�&!�*(�!&�+����,!�������'(-#("&�.�&�'("&��	�	�(�/��!��*!�/�.��,(�0!�(�)�����1!�����23�!����4�!�����4�.�!��������5678�9:;5<=95�=>?;@>?;5�56<??�AB�CDEF�DGE�FGHFIFE�AGHJ�HKAB�LLLLL�EDM�JN�LLLLLLLLLO�PQPPO�RM�DGE�RFHSFFG�HKF�7GTDGE�?CUAIF�VHATAHAFB�=WFGXMO�D�>YGAXAUDT�ZDHFI�@ABHIAXHO�JIWDGA[FE�DGE�F\ABHAGW�AG�HKF�9JYGHM�JN�8DG�]FIGDIEAGJ�YGEFI�DGE�RM�̂AIHYF�JN�HKF�TDSB�JN�HKF�8HDHF�JN�9DTANJIGAD�_KFIFAGDNHFI�IFNFIIFE�HJ�AGHFIXKDGWFDRTM�DB�̀abcde�fgh�̀=WFGXMei�DGE�9DIJTTJ�?GWAGFFIBO�7GXj�SAHK�JNNAXFB�TJXDHFE�AG�<ÂFIBAEFO�7ÎAGFO�kKJFGA\O�DGE�lJB�=GWFTFB�_KFIFAGDNHFI�IFNFIIFE�HJ�DB�m̀ngopqrfgreiO�NJI�UIJNFBBAJGDT�EFBAWG�BFÎAXFB�NJI�HKF�<kst�lAuYAEB�v�8JTAEB�9DUDXAHM�<FXĴFIM�v�5KAXwFGAGW�kIJxFXHB�?;PPQyyO�?;PyQQtO�DGE�?;PyQQPO�DGE�BKDTT�IF̂ABF�HKF�9JGHIDXH�DB�KFIFAG�DCFGEFEz�� 8?957:;�{:V<O�89:k?�:{�Z:<|�=;@�8?<}79?8O�78�96=;~?@�5:�<?=@z��9JGBYTHDGH�o�BFÎAXFB�DGE�IFBUJGBARATAHAFB�BKDTT�RF�AG�DXXJIEDGXF�SAHK�9JGBYTHDGH�B�kIJUJBDT�JN�=CFGECFGH�EDHFE��YGF�PQO�PQPPO�DHHDXKFE�KFIFHJO�IFNFIFGXFE�KFIFAGO�DGE�CDEF�D�UDIH�KFIFJN�DB����2����������������	�����
�����j���� 8?957:;�87�O�9:>k?;8=57:;O�78�<?}78?@�5:�=@@�56?�{:ll:Z7;~z����7G�XJCUFGBDHAJG�NJI�HKF�SJIw�IFUIFBFGHFE�RM�HKAB�9JGHIDXH�=CFGECFGH�5SJO�=WFGXM�BKDTT�UDM�9JGBYTHDGH����������!��!!"�
���
�
������������4���4���3���NJI�DTT�DEEAHAJGDT�BFÎAXFB�UIĴAEFE�AG�DXXJIEDGXF�SAHK�	�����
�����O�IFNFIFGXFE�KFIFAGO�DHHDXKFE�KFIFHJO�DGE�CDEF�D�UDIH�KFIFJNj�5KAB�IFUIFBFGHB�DG�AGXIFDBF�HJ�HKF�9JGHIDXH�JN����QO���jQQj�� $���������������������
���2����������3���&���������������

���������������23�� �

�������������������� �¡��¢¢£¡¤¥¦�£¢¥§̈©§¥ª�¢�¥«̈¬�¤ª̈ª¡̈¬



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������ !! �"#��"$���" �%$&�� !�" & �'�"$( �)*�*$++,�-'( �$�� .�$�.�$/&  .�$!�% &��" �$0'( �$) �.) ����� )!#�$�.����.'��/�!'�"$( �-$*! .��"�!�.'-*) ����'�0 -') ���-'&%'&$� .����'��" �-'��&$-��.'-*) ��!1��234	35�67�2�6�89242926:�	;63�<=� �	�>44>�63;2366�:?�23�@=�AB�C*��-�%$+��$� &�D�!�&�-�E���FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�G"�($H��D !")*I"�����������������������������AD$� E� J&$"$)�K1J1�K*0,#�L"1D1#�L1M1�������AD$� E�J � &$+�C$�$/ &��� � ������������� N�- �L& !�. ���O�L&��-�%$+P��PQ"$&/ ��� � � � � ���� FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�����������������������������������������������������������������������������M&�-�C1�C�++!#�L1M1���������� AD$� E�����������������������������������G ��'&�N�- �L& !�. ��������� �R�S$+$�- �TU�V"�!�L$/ �W�� ���'�$++,�X U��S+$�I�Y���

Z[\]̂ _̀a�bacde[fd�gZh�iZbjjkilmnbkjmopqomrZjbmsptblrpriput

vwxywxzxxvwxywxzxx



����������	����
���	�������	���������	���� �!�	"�#	$��%%&$'()�&%(*+,*(-�%�(.+/�'-+-$+0/



�� ��������	
���
���
����
���������	
����	��������������������� ����������������������������������

�� ! "���#�"$%&'$%&()*+,,�--)+./�!/'.01�

23&%�,�4�,�,,��56/�7689:;�<=68>3%4�?/*/�?6:&0:=8@�*&>:&%%6�A&@8&'�*$=:6%�B(:@:(:%;�">%&0C�D�EF�G:$H8@@�"9%&3%�IJ:&.4�I"� �E�K�<3HL%0(M� N?O��<.@:';�7J:0P%&:&>�?6.L%0(�Q*+,,�--R�S�"$%&'$%&(�+./�!�QB='8(%'T�U%86�56/�<=68>3%M�?6%;%&(%'�J%6%:&�VW�"$%&'$%&(�+./�!�X.6�(J%�N%>:.&8@�?@8&(���QN?O�R�<.@:';�7J:0P%&:&>�?6.L%0(�Q*+,,�--R/�7J:;�8$%&'$%&(�:;�:&(%&'%'�(.�8''6%;;�;%9%68@�0J8&>%;�(.�(J%�;0.=%�.X�Y.6P�8(�(J%�6%Z3%;(�.X�A&@8&'�*$=:6%�B(:@:(:%;�">%&0C�QA*B"T�8&'�(.�=6.9:'%�(J%�8&(:0:=8(%'�@%9%@�.X�%XX.6(�&%%'%'�X.6�:$=@%$%&(8(:.&/�7J%�X.@@.Y:&>�=6.9:'%;�(J%�H8;:;�X.6�(J%�8$%&'$%&(�8;�Y%@@�8;�'%;06:=(:.&;�X.6�(J%�Y.6P�(8;P;�6%Z3:6%'�(.�8@@.Y�(J%�6%Z3%;(%'�0J8&>%W/�[\]̂]�_̀a�bcdefcdeg�h9%6�(J%�0.36;%�.X�'%9%@.=:&>�(J%�=6.L%0(�(J6.3>J�(J%�U%;:>&�A&X.6$8(:.&�5%$.68&'8�QUA5WR�=6%=868(:.&�8&'�!��=%60%&(�'%;:>&�;(8>%;4�6%>3@86�=6.>6%;;�$%%(:&>;�8&'�6%9:%Y�Y.6P;J.=;�Y%6%�0.&'30(%'�(.�8@@.Y�A*B"�(J%�.==.6(3&:(C�(.�=6.9:'%�X%%'H80P�.&�(J%�$8:&�%@%$%&(;�.X�(J%�'%;:>&/�7J6.3>J�(J:;�=6.0%;;4�A*B"�:'%&(:X:%'�8�&3$H%6�.X�:(%$;�(J8(�(J%C�X%@(�Y8668&(%'�X36(J%6�:&9%;(:>8(:.&i8&8@C;:;4�jk'8(%'�0.&X:6$8(:.&4�.6�'%;:>&�0J8&>%;/�7J%;%�:(%$;�86%�8;�X.@@.Y;M��/�<(6%;;�(%;(�(J%�;%0.&'86C�(6%8($%&(�=6.0%;;�(.�0.&X:6$�(J%�0366%&(�N?O��08=80:(C4�8&'�Y.6P�Y:(J�A*B"l;�?@8&&:&>�m6.3=�(.�'%(%6$:&%�(:$:&>�X.6�(J%�0.&9%6;:.&�(.�8�$%$H68&%�H:.6%80(.6�QnopR�WC;(%$/�,/�"'':(:.&�.X�q�&%Y�H.:@%6�(.�(J%�N?O��':>%;(%6�J%8(:&>�;C;(%$/�!/�B='8(:&>�.X�UA5��-4�U:>%;(%6�m8;�r%&%X:0:8@�B;%�<(3'C4�H8;%'�.&�6%0%&(@C�6%0%:9%'�0.$$%&(;�X6.$�A*B"/�-/�U%;:>&�X.6�(J%�6%J8H:@:(8(:.&�8&'�$.':X:08(:.&�.X�':;;.@9%'�8:6�X@.(8(:.&�(J:0P%&%6;�QU"s7;R���8&'�,�X.6�;03$�(J:0P%&:&>/�F/�IJ8&>%;�(.�(J%�'%$.@:(:.&�'68Y:&>;/�7J:;�Y:@@�:&0@3'%�0J8&>%;�(.�(J%�=6.L%0(�'%$.@:(:.&�6%Z3:6%$%&(;�8&'�6%$.98@�.X�'%$.@:(:.&�'68Y:&>;�(J8(�Y:@@�&.(�H%�'%9%@.=%'�H%C.&'�(J%�!��=%60%&(�'%;:>&�;(8>%/�D/�N%$.98@�.t�(J%�&%Y��,�P:@.9.@(�QPuR�%@%0(6:08@�H3:@':&>�X6.$�(J%�'%;:>&4�8;�8�&%Y�H3:@':&>�Y:@@�&.�@.&>%6�H%�&%%'%'�X.6�(J%�=6.L%0(/�E/�U:>%;(:.&�I.&(6.@�<(68(%>:%;�S�N%9:%Y�.X�(J%�=6.0%;;�0.&(6.@�&8668(:9%�Q?I+R�X.6�(J%�%1:;(:&>�':>%;(%6�;C;(%$�'%9%@.=%'�8;�=86(�.X�(J%�<I"U"�5:>68(:.&�?6.L%0(�Q*+�!��D/�FR�;.�(J8(�(J%�N?O��;C;(%$�08&�.=%68(%�:&�%:(J%6�(J6%%O=J8;%�.6�;:&>@%O=J8;%�':>%;(:.&�$.'%/�K/�B='8(:&>�(J%�A*B"�";;%(�N%>:;(%6�Y:(J�(J%�&%Y�%Z3:=$%&(�8&'�J86'Y86%�(.�H%�8''%'�(J6.3>J�(J:;�=6.L%0(/� /�*98@38(:.&�.X�8@(%6&8(:9%;�X.6�;063HH:&>�':>%;(%6�>8;�X6.$�(J%�80:'�':>%;(%6;/�7J%�Y.6P�&%%'%'�(.�:$=@%$%&(�(J%�8H.9%�:(%$W�VW�=6%;%&(%'�:&�(J%�(8;P;�H%@.Y/�

vwxyz{|}�~}���w����v���v~�������~���������v�~����~��������



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

������������

 !"#�$�%�&'()""� )"'�&)*+,-!(.� ()!'/),'�0(+*)""�'+�1+,23(/�'4)�15((),'�607$�1!8!*3'.������9�	:�	�������;�����:�����������<����:�	������������;��:��=�>?�	������������������������		����@�����������������9:����:���A=��B���	�������C����DE��B����������@�����������	�������;�����������?��F���������������	�������GF������H�9�	���	I�����������9��:�������������;�����:����	���:��������	������������:�������		�������������������	�������;��:����?J�������������K�	����=������G�K=L���������������������9������	����I����������������	���		���	���;��:��=�>?�	������������������������		�	��M:����	�������9����@�������9��������������������������:��������������		���������������������:���������=�>?�	�������������������	�	���������������	�������;���������������������:�	�9����@��	���9��:�;����;��9����C������	�;���=�>?�����=��������������N�G=�>NL���������������:���������;���9:���������	�����;��:��	������������������������		��������A=��	���������
����;���9��I����@�������������:�	���	I�������	O�?��K�������
���		���	������������������	���������	����������<�������	�������;�����:���������������������F������������������������������������G�����������	�;�P�QRSL�����	�����H�9��:������������	��;;���������9��:����	���������<�������	��������;����	��;;���T	��;;���	���	�@������	��U��V�	����:��	�����������������G������:��������	H��������:��
���		���	�������	������@	������:����	�����������	9�������<�	����	������������:��
���		���	�����������	����������<�������	��N��W@��������������;�������������;�����:��	���		���	�����;�������������������������������:��A��X��������		���������������������:��=�>?���������������������Y��F����������9��:�����Z	����������[��������@�����;����;��9����C������E����=�>?�����=�>N��\��9����C������	�9����@��	��������:���9��:��������9�	��9������:��������	���	���������������:���������������������;���������	�����;��:��	������������������������		��������A=������	��������	���������:����:��;��9����C������������	�	�;���@��:�;��������	�@��������������@��������	�	��������������		�����9��������@��������������������������U��]��������������	@����̂��;������\�������������F�����������������������9��:��������������9��������	�����:��̂��;��������������������������Z	��������	�������:��\�����_�������àbcdaefgbahi�j� èfkl�fmn�ocmfb�pleahh�qahl�rbfm�hsgtcllan�cm�abaulevmcu�kvetflw�j� èfkl�fmn�ocmfb�eaxvel�hsgtcllan�cm�abaulevmcu�kvetflw�yz{|}�{~��{��������|��{������������xbfml�hlfkk��cbb�uvmnsul�l�a�pleahh�qahl�xae�l�a�rbfm�fmn�uvbbaul�hftxbah�fh�ufbban�kve�cm�l�a�rbfmw��mfb�hch�vk�hftxbah��cbb�ga�xaekvetan�fl������h�bfgveflve��kfucbcl�w��k�hftxbah�ea�scea�vkkhcla�bfgveflve��fmfb�hch��������cbb��ve��nceaulb���cl��f�uvmleful�bfgveflve��lv�xaekvet�l�a�ea�schcla�fmfb�hahw���������h�rbfmmcm���evsx��cbb�xevdcna�cmkvetflcvm�ea�fencm��l�a�fmlcucxflan�kslsea�kbv��xev�aulcvmh�lv��r������� ¡�¢�£¤��¥¥¦¥h�l�a�lctcm��kve�l�a�§̈ ��a©xfmhcvm�xev�aulw�ªse�smnaehlfmncm��ch�xeabctcmfe��cmkvetflcvm�kevt�������cbb�vmb��«¦��¬�®�«®¦���¦�̄®°��±�²��q�ch��cbb�ga�nvustamlan�cm�l�a�eaxvel�vmua�cl�ch�fdfcbfgbaw�

³́µ¶·̧¹º�»º¼½¾́¿½�À³Á�Â³»ÃÃÄÂÅÆÇ»ÄÃÆÈÉÊÈÆË³Ã»ÆÌÉÍ»ÅËÉËÂÉÎÍ



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'(()*)+,�+-�./0�1+)2/3�*+�4567�8)9/#*/3�:/"*),9�;<#*/=�����>��	����� ?��>���� @���������������������>����>���A�	�����B�CD�E �����	�	����>���	??�������>����	��������������������E���� �	�� ����>�������� �� ?��>��������>�	��F���	����G��HI�	�	������>���A�	�����������E �����	�	����� �	�	�	� ?��J �E ����	������������������K	����E��� �?������ ����������������������	�	� ?��>���� @������>�����������	����? ���������������� ������ ?��>���������������	���������������>����>�	�J�	�� �����L�> J������� ����	 �J �����M�����>�� ������ �� ?�E �>�E ����	�	������� 	����������>��J������� ��>	�J>���>������������	��>��>��>�	������ ���� ����>��	���������	�	� ?��>��>���������M�������	�����E �����	�	����	����������������������J�	�	E	�M��������M�	����E��������J>��>�� �?�������>����������?������	�������� �����>����>����	N� ?� ���������J��> �������������E��N��E ���������J ���� ��E���������E�����>���? �����������M�	�����>�������J��>����E �����E��������� ��>��B�CD�E �����	�	�����	������ ?��>�	��� @�������������� ��� ���������>���>����E �������������	 �	����?�����>����>��E �����	�	����J���������� � ��������	�? �� J	O�P������>���� ?��>��E ����	��	��>�����>���E������� ���� ������	������	��P�F����� ������ ����>���������J����E��� �����>���J �����E ����	�	 ����� ������	������	��P�Q��������	�J����E��������E���� ������>����E ����	��	���E��N������>�������� ?������������� ��� ��>������	������	�	�������>�	�J������M����	 ���� ��?����� �	�� ��>���A�	���������	������	��������	�	����� ��>��E �����	�	������>�	���>����	�J����E����������J��>��>����J�E ����������� ���
����?���J �N���M�����? ���>�	���	N�������	��>��? �� J���O�D�����? �������������������	�	� ?��>���� @������������>������������?���������� �� ?��>����F�	�	��������� ���������� ��>��	�������������� ?��>���A�	�����E �����	�	����?��� ���������>�� E	������� J�J����������������? ���>��� 	���������J������	��	 ���	�J�����	������?� ��������	��??� ��������>�������������	� E	������? ���>���A�	���������	����	�	�����������>��J������� ��>	���>�	������	�	�J�	����? �����? �� J�����>��F���R
������� E���F���	�� ���J �N	> ������B����J��>���A�	�������	�	�	�����> ��J�����	�	�������������S�����������������F�	������G�S�FI���M�������	�����TE����������������	������	�����������  ��������J��>�E ��������� �U�? ��	���E���	�V�����F���	������	����������	�J������������E������� ��E����������� ����@ ��?�A�����	�	�G���>��������E ���� A����� A�������������� ���W��X����	>��>����������� ������������ ��������� �	� ?�	�?��� �� ��	�G���������>��� ����	�?���W��	�� A���	����� �>���� ������� �������� �� �����>�	�������J����E��	���J��>����� ���M���������? ����� �������>��?������	�?� ���>��>����������������	�	�� ��	��E��	>���	�������������? ���>����J�E �����������M����������������M��������Y���	��E��	>��>��	����? ���>����J�E �������>�	�	E��	N�J������������>��? �� J���O����Z �����������E�������	������  ��������J��>������� �������?��� ��������	���	��E�����? �����	������	���J��>������	��??�� ���������� ��������	���	������������������ ��������� ���� ������[ ��������������? �� J�����������G�������
�����	�����W�J��>������� ������J��>��	������	���?������	��F���� ��� �	��		�? ������� ��������	����� �� ���? �J����J��>���������	�����

\]̂_̀abc�dcefg]hf�i\j�k\dllmknopdmloqrsqot\ldourvdntrtkrwv



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!�����������"���#�	���������	������	�$� %���	�	����� ������������"��� ��&����� �	��������� ���� �� ������"�������� �� &��"����%�$ �������"�	�	$��	'�%������������"��& �� %���(����)$�������& ����� ��&� ������� ���"���#�	���������	������	�$� %��	���"�	�%������������"��$� %�����	���������������#�	������ ��� ��	�	���	������������� �����������������	*�� �����	��$��+���� ������ ��		�� ����& ���"������	������	�	�	����	�����"����& ����� �� $�������&� ���������"��� ����%�����		����"�������� �� &����"��������	������	�$� %���%����$���������� �������"��,-.�	�������/�������	� &��"����%�$ ����������� ������"�����������*�����$�������������& ���"�� �������	�	������"��� ������	��	�%����$��	���� ���� ������� ��&����� �	�� ��"��$� %��	�0�������	�1�������� �� ���� �� &������$���&��/����������	��������	����� ������2��	�%�����	�1�������* ��� ��&����� �	�� ��"���#�	���������	������	��������%"���������������3 ��������������& �� %�����������0�������
�����	�����2�%��"������� ������%��"���� ��		�� ����&������	�������� �������� �	��+���� ��� �	��		�& ��� ��&����� �	�� ��"������	������	�	�	����� ���� �� �������� ��"����	�����4��+���� ����	�������%���	��	����&����� �	������ ���� �� &��� $�$���� 	��& ���"����%�$ �������������	������	�	�	����� ��&����� �	���"�����������������%���	�� ������ ��"���� 5�������%����	����������	�����������$���6������� ����������$���6� ������������+��%���	�7�/�����& ��8�%�9 �����+��%����8 �� ������4���6� :)��;���7�
3:�����3�4����� <�
�
3:�����3�4���=� 9)�>�7��7����>�8�4����� ������7����>�8�4���!� 9)�>�7��7���
�3��)8
�4���4� ������7���
�3��)8
�4�
�6� 9��>+�8<��)+�?�3���)8
��>�8�4�
��� 9��>+�8<��)+�?�3���)8
�
�3��)8
�4�
�=� 9)�>�7���+��8+������
���)7��+����>
�4�
��� �������+��8+������
���)7��+����>
�����@� 9)�>�7��@��A)>��0AB��)�)7�3)8�7)>�3�8��7�0�332�
�8<>��>�8��+��<7������C�� 9)�>�7��@�A��33��>�A���)8����D6� 9)�>�7�3)8�7)>�
3:�����3�+��<7������6��� ��8�>�
3:�+�>�
�=����66!� 3�9>��E�3)8+����
3:�+�>�
�4�

FGHIJKLM�NMOPQGRP�SFT�UFNVVWUXYZNWVY[\][ŶFVNY_\̀ NX̂\̂U\à



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!��"����# �� ������$$��%� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�)''���'+�)��#!�*'#�)'(��(�#�$$���� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(��'+�)��#!�*'#�)'(��(�#�$$��,� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�-)'�#!�#-��(�#�$$��.� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�(�-/��#-��#!�)�*����*(���(�#�$$���� -�
�&('+�)
��'+�)��(�#�$$#�%� �)'*�

��#!��#
�)���#����'#�!��-)���0�1�!2�3�&'�(�)�,�$$#��� �1�!�3����#�/����(''������#-�$$#�,� �1�!�3�&'�(�)�
��������
�$$#�.� �1�!�4�!�-�
��)�-�
�&('+�)5�!��"���	�����	����6����� �	�6 ������"�7 �����"����� ���� ����������8��,����������	7���������	��8�����������66 ���6 ���8�	���	9�8���:	��7��������8���	������/ "������������������������ 	��"�	������ �������,������������8���66 ���� ������ ���8��� 	������8��,����������	������	�"�����	��8���66 ���� ����6 �"����� ������ ���8�����"���	��	����6����� �	������� 	�	�6 ���8��;�����������<���������������%�������������������7�������	� ��	�����������������8�	���	9��=����� �� ������ �	����� ����>�������	�6 ���8����"�7 �������� ��8��6��������	� �� 6�!���%,
��������������+ �9�)�	������ �	�����* �	����� ��
�8������?@ABC@DEFA@GH�I�?DEJBKLGM�GN@OBPBOEQBRKGM�EKS�RNBKBRK�RP�NDRFEFA@�ORGQ�PRD�TUV�WX�N@DO@KQY�ZX�N@DO@KQY�[XX�N@DO@KQ�S@GBLK�\BA@GQRK@G]�?DEJBKLGM�GN@OBPBOEQBRKGM�EKS�ORGQ�JBAA�F@�ĜF\BQQEA�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ�EG�NEDQ�RP�Q_@�OR\FBK@S�G@Q]�I� K̀ORDNRDEQ@�G@A@OQ@S�FRBA@D�S@QEBAG�EKS�S@GBLK�ODBQ@DBE�BKQR�Q_@�abcde�fgh�[ijk�l_@�abcde�fgh�[ij�mbee�nV�ĜF\BQQ@S�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ�EG�N@D�Q_@�RDBLBKEA�GORN@�RP�JRDo]�pqrs�t�u�vwxqyz�{|}�~���{��zryz���qr��z�z����q��vrz��y�x��!���%.�"�	� ��������������� �����	������ 6��8����%<��!)�6 ��)�3%�(�>��	�1�
 ���	�*��������)�� ������� :����0�#�.��%�1��#�.�����������������8�	�!���"�	�� ����������	������ 6��8���������	� ��� 6�" �9��/ "�����������8�	�	������� �������������������������"�� �����	��8����8���" �����9��� �8������� �� ��������� ��������������	� �� 6��8�	�� �������+ �9�� �7��� �����������8�	���	9�"�������������� �� ��������8��������������"�� �����	���� �!���%.��������		�����8������	���� ������� �������	�!���%.5��!���	����-�	�&���6�������	��
�����?@ABC@DEFA@GH�I��NSEQ@S�abcde�fgh�[���ĜF\BQQ@S�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ]�

���������������������� ��¡¡¢ £¤¥�¢¡¤¦§̈¦¤©�¡�¤ª§«�£©§© §¬«



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'()!�*+,"-./.0"0.12�"23�413.5.6"0.12#��7�� ��������	� ��� 8�9 �:���������� ����� 8�	���8� ���7������������������;����8���	��������<���������;����8���	������
�� ������;����8���	��� ���9��7�9�	���	�����	�8� ���7��������8���9�	7���������������	����������������  �	����������� ��7����9���=�	�	�����=�>�	�?�������9 ���@����� ���		� ���������@��� ������������� ����� ��	7�����	��7���9 ���� �� �����@������������A�B?��C 9������8��7��������	�	�������	�		� �	�9��7������� ��������8�����7��	����� 8��7���� D����	7 9����7�����7�@������� �� 8�=�>�	�?������������ ��8������7���8 ��	����7��:�������	������ 8��7����=�	�	����� ����� �����	����8������@���8��EF��7��:�������7��	���	������9 ����������7��8� 9�� ����� ��7����=�	�	�����97��7�9 ���������	���7����G�����	�H�� 8��7����=����	������7���		 �������7������������������8 �� ������ �I7����������������� ����7��:������ 8�	�������7��� ����������7��:�����JKLMEN��	�� ����� ����������	���	�		������=���O
��P�	��� ���7�	��8������E���������G�	�����7����7����7�@������� ������� ��8����� �� 8�=�>�	�?�������� ��� �����	����7��:�������	������ 8��7����=�	�	����@����� �� ��������� ��7���� D�����=������7��=�������<������������	���������9����	���	�� ��9�	������� �� �	�����	���� �������� �	���	����� 8�=�>�	�8 ��7���������7��	������� ������������������� �� 8��7�	��������������� ��7�9�	��������� ���97��7�������������7�����7�@������� �� 8�=�>�	�?�������9�	�	������7�����8���������� ��7��
����8���9 �:���G�����8 ���7�	���	:�������	��7��8 �� 9���Q�?��A����9��7���	B@�������9���	�8 ��=�>�	�?�������� ��������������7�������� �� ����	��7��������������7�@������� �����I ��� ��8����� �	��������8 ���R�� ����� ��R		�		��������� ������ ����S����9� 8��7��=�>�EQ�����7����������������� ��8� �������8 ����7�@������� �� 8��7��=�>�E�9�	�� ������		��7�����7�����������	��������� �� ����	� 8��7��	�	���������7����7������������������T;�U��T;V��������	�9 ���� �������� �@�������		����W��7��7�	����� ��7����	������	���9�	�� ������� ���������??��������� ������������7�����7�����������	����������7�@������� �X� ��8����� �	��������� ��7���Y������ 		�@���97�����7��=�>�	�9������� ������ ���Z�� �� ����	 �������	 ��  ���������9��7�������	��88�97���� �	����� �������8�������� �������7��������7����	��7���9 ������� ��� ������ �� 8��7��	�	�����@���7������ ��7��@ ���9�	����������7� �7��7��<������������	����	@���������8����97��7�������� ������������� ���7�����7�@������� �� 8��7��=�>����T;��������	�9 �����	 �@�����������7������	� ��� ��Y������7���88 ���@�� ������7������I	��������	�������8� �������8���@��:�������������7����7�������������9�	�����  ����� ����� ���7��������������7 �7��������7�����	��������� ������� ��� �	�U�T;N�9�	� ������ �����������������7��	@��	:	�@�� 9�9���������������7����T;���7�@������� ������	��������� ������	�8 ���7��=�>�	Q����[���������� ����8 ����7����T;�� ����� ���		�		������������ ������ �������9������=���� ��	������ 8�8������	�������� �������� �	�������A����9���������9��7������	��88�� ������9�8������I��� �������� �	��

\]̂_̀abc�dcefg]hf�i\j�k\dllmknopdmloqrsqot\ldourvdntrtkrwv



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!��"���� ��"���#�
�$�"�		 ���������%� ���� ���&��'�����
�	����(�&�)������� �*�����&� �&��&��!������������	����	)����������	�������������������+�������	�, ���&�����&�����������	����������&�)������� �-� ��,����� �� ,�"�%�	�#��������� ���.��&��������������� ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	��.��������� ������&�	���, ����� ��.�	���� �� ��������� �"���/
��(�&�)������� ��.�������������� ���� �� ,��0�	�����"�%�����&�������� �� ����	1������������� ,����&�������� �� ����	����'����.��&���.����		� �&��.�	��	�����1������ �������������	��	���������� ��,����� �	����&����&�����2'����������������.����)�������.&�������� �������� ����� ���"�%��	�	���� ������ �� ��� �������1�	�&�� ��,����� �	�.����)��)�	��� �������,� �������	��,,������+����������,���������� �������� �	��	��&����	�����,�,��&�������� �����)��3��&��&��������� ��� �������45���&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	���&������	� ��.�	������� ���������&��"�%����&�)������� ����+�������	������	����2�� ���"���#�
�� ��������&�����&������-	��������,������	�������, ����� ������� ����67�� �����) ���.����)�����������,� ��89:�/
�� �"���#�
��%��&��� ����"���#�
�.������������&��, �� .���*����
����&��'�����������������	������	�	�$�% �� .�����&��!����������	)������������.���������+�	������������	�	� ,�	���� �������� �	�)�����, ������	���� ��� ��� ��&����&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	���&��,������	������������&�����&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	�. ���	�����)���&�����,������ ��� �������"���� �� ,����������������+�������	�, ���&����45��������	� ,��&��"�%�	�� ���� .���&�)������� ������������������ �� ,����� ������	���	����� ������������������������� ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	���;��(������� �������� ��.��&�����<	�
5�"��������� ���� =���������	 ��&���� ��� ���������� ��� ��������	�������� �� ��������� ��&��
5�"��������	�, ���&��"�%�	��>��"���� ����	�������.���	��	����,����� �	������ ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	��, ���&����&�)������� ������� ��,����� �	�� �"�%�	�#���������&�����������������.���	�� ������ ��&���� =�������.����	����������	�����������)����������� ����!>��
 ��� ,��&����.����.���	�.�������������������� �� ��������� ��&��!������������	����	���� �'�����&���� =����� ��������)�������������	�.&��&����.���	�.����������������.&��&�	����������� �)������� �������)����� ������������"��.���	�(�+�����, ��(�&�)������� ������� ��,����� �� ,�"�%�	�#�������"��.����? �� ������ "���� ����, ��!����������
���;�"�#� "�%��?@��#��?"�?@��������(��A�?��?"�
�5��@?� B�	�;�"��� "�%��?@��#��?"�?@����A@3�(��A�?��?"�
�5��@?
� B�	�;�"�!� 
@A�"
���?�C���?��D��A"�?C��A�?
��?"�
�5��@?
� B�	�;�
�#� "�%��?@��#��?"����A�?�� ? �;�
��� "�%��?@��#��?"���
�5��@?� ? �;�
�!� "�%��?@��#��?"���
�5��@?
��?"�"����A
� ? �;�
�;� "�%��?@��#��?"���"����A
� ? �;�
�>� "�%��?@��#��?"���"����A
� ? �

EFGHIJKL�MLNOPFQO�RES�TEMUUVTWXYMVUXZ[\ZX]EUMX̂[_MW][]T[̀_



���������	�
����������������������������������	����������������������������

��� �� �� �

!��"����# �� ������ !���� ����$ ��%����������
���&���'� !�(��#)��'��#!�������*��+�#��#!�
�,��)#� -�	�&����� !�(��#)��'��#!���+).�*��+�#��#!�
�,��)#
� -�	�&���%� /0123/���#�4���#��5��+!�#4��+�#��#!�
�,��)#� -�	�&���&� !�(��#)��'��#!���
�,��)#
� # �&���6� !�(��#)��'��#!���
�,��)#
��#!�!����+
� # �&���7� !�(��#)��'��#!���!����+
� # ���!�'� �+�,�*�,�+�!��)��+�#� # �&���'� !�(���*����+�,�*�,�+��+�#� # �&����� �8�
��#4�
�5�5��+!�#4��+�,�*�,�+��+�#� # ������� �*5�5��+!�#4��+�,�*�,�+�*))���+�#� # ����'7� ��
��*�
�#4+��+�#��!��4*���9�'� -�	�&���%� �8�
��#4�
.5!:��
�#4+��+�#��!��4*��� # �&���&� ;<<:&���+�=���)#�!*�.�#4��#!�+)�!�
����*-� # �&���6� ;<<:&��
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4� # �&���7� !�(��,)#�*)+�
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4�'� # �&���>� !�(��,)#�*)+�
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4��� # �&����� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�'� # �&���@� !�(���*���
,?�����,
��� # �&��'�� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�%� # �&��''� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�&� # �4#�@� �#
�*���#����)#�!����+
� # �&�#�'� �A�!�:�!�(���)+-��*�
�)*�4���#!�5+�#!�*
� -�	�&�#��� �A�!�:�!�(���#���'� -�	�&�#�%� �A�!�:�!�(���#����� -�	�&�#�&� �A�!�:��?�,B�#�#4�
,���.�++
��#!�����
� -�	�&�#�6� �A�!�!�(���#���'�
���*���)#���#B��#!�*�,-,+������� # �&�#�7� �A�!�!�(���#�����
���*���)#���#B��#!�*�,-,+������� # ��C��" �D���������� ���$ ���C�	��� E������������������F���	D�&�/G��	D	�'����������%H��F���	���G����G ������������� ������ $��C�����"���	�� ���������G�����$ ���C��%����������	G��������IJKF�" �D���� ���"��C��C�������������������������$$ ���� �� ����������� ������ $��C�	��� E�������������C� �C��C��7�����������@���������������'�������������������G�������	� ��	��KF�������������C�	���	D��

LMNOPQRS�TSUVWMXV�YLZ�[LT\\][̂ _̀T]\_abca_dL\T_ebfT̂dbd[bgf



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$%"&'(#")*�+�!&',-�'./�01234�567�89:�);(<$--"/�$.�"#"=-&>.$=�,>&<'-?�+�!&'@$.A)B�CDEF1G1F3H1I2CB�32J�ID121I2�IG�DKIL3L4E�FICH�GIK�HME�NO�P"&=".-B�QO�P"&=".-B�8OO�P"&=".-�/")$A.�<$#")->.")?�RST)�@$##�'#)>�("�/"%"#>P"/�'./�'//"/�->�-U"�)P"=$,$='-$>.)�->�'//&"))�<>/$,$"/�IDEK3H1I2�IG�5VWXC�8�32J�YZ�!"#$%"&'(#"�/>=;<".-)�@$##�("�);(<$--"/�$.�"#"=-&>.$=�,>&<'-?�[\]̂_�]̀�a]bc�deefĝ hi]jek�8Z�0$"#/�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-)�@$##�=>.)$)-�>,�%$);'#�>()"&%'-$>.)�>.#l?�T>�P>@"&�<"-"&�/'-'�=>##"=-$>.m�-")-$.Am�A&>;./�-")-$.Am�>&�%>#-'A"n=;&&".-�<"');&"<".-)�@$##�("�=><P#"-"/?�YZ�o."&A$p"/�"q;$P<".-�@$##�.>-�("�>P"."/�')�P'&-�>,�-U"�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-?�rZ�s-�$)�'));<"/�(l�-U"�/")$A.�'./�"%'#;'-$>.�-"'<�-U'-�);,,$=$".-�"t$)-$.A�)-'./(l�P>@"&�$)�P&>%$/"/�->�-U"�"#"=-&$='#�/$)-&$(;-$>.�)l)-"<�,>&�-U"�!u0v)�8�32J�Y?�w-'./(l�P>@"&�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-�'./�&"=><<"./'-$>.)�'&"�.>-�P'&-�>,�-U"�osxS�'))"))<".-?�yZ�!u0v)�8�32J�Y�"q;$P<".-�@$##�("�&"P#'="/�@$-U�#$z"�z$./�'./�)$p"?�{Z�o#"=-&$='#�/$)-&$(;-$>.�)l)-"<�='P'=$-l�$.=&"')"�/")$A.�$)�.>-�$.=#;/"/�')�P'&-�>,�-U$)�@>&z?�NZ�osxS�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-�/>")�.>-�$.=#;/"�wSu!u�$<P&>%"<".-)m�P&>A&'<<$.Am�>&�&'/$>�P'-U�);&%"l�"%'#;'-$>.?�9Z�S><P#"-"�>&�P'&-$'#�wSu!u�)l)-"<�=l("&)"=;&$-l�'.'#l)$)m�P'-=U$.Am�%"&$,$='-$>.m�'./�%'#$/'-$>.�@$##�.>-�("�P&>%$/"/?�|Z�w"=;&$-lm�,$&"�'#'&<m�#$AU-.$.A�P&>-"=-$>.m�#$AU-$.Am�'./�';/$>}%$);'#�)l)-"<)�'&"�.>-�$.=#;/"/�$.�-U"�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-?�QZ�R~S�='($."-�')�(;$#-�/&'@$.A�/"%"#>P<".-�$)�.>-�$.=#;/"/�$.�-U$)�)=>P"�>,�@>&z?�8OZ�!")$A.�@$##�.>-�$.=#;/"�Suv��$.-"&."-�)"&%$="m�-"#"PU>."�)"&%$="�>&�)l)-"<��>&�='-U>/$=�P&>-"=-$>.�)l)-"<)m�'//$-$>.)m�>&�<>/$,$='-$>.)?�88Z�o#"=-&$='#�'./�=>.-&>#�=$&=;$-�@$&$.Am�='(#")m�'./�=>./;$-�->�("�)U>@.�>.�)$.A#"}#$."�'./�=>.-&>#�)$.A#"}#$."�/$'A&'<)?��������������������������������������������� ��������	� ��� ��� ���������������������������� ���� �� ��������������		����������� ������������� �����������	����� �������� �������������	������	� ��������������	���� ��� ��������������	����� ��������� �������������� ��� ����	���� ���� ��������������� ����� �� ������������ ����	��������	����������� ������ �	���	�������	������	������������ ������������������	�����������	�������������������� ���� �� ��������������		���������� ��������� ������������������ ���������� �������	�	������	�� ���	� ��������� ���� ��	���������������� ������ ��������������	�������	��	����	�������������������������� ��� ���� ���������	�� ���� �� ����¡� ���� �������������¢ �� ������ ����� ����� �������������
���£����� ��¤��� �

����¤��¢¥����¦¤���¦¢� §�	����������� �����	���� ���� ��	����������������������� ������� ��������		������ ��������������� ������ ������ ������ ������������������	����	������

©̈ª«¬®̄�°̄±²³©́²�µ̈¶�·̈ °̧ ¹̧·º»¼°¹̧»½¾¿½»À̈ °̧»Á¾Â°ºÀ¾À·¾ÃÂ



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'()*+",�*-�./�$0�1,(23452",�675,859:��;�� ��������	� ��� <�= �>����������� ���������=����>?������������	���������������=������������@�������� �	������ =���� ��;����=�<��������	�����;�	��� A�����B =�������������=� <��;���C�	�����D�E���������������<��	�������� ������������������ ������ <�F�����
����������������	��������� ������G ��� ���	; =����;����;���C�	������ =���D����@������H�������I�DHJ�KLM�	<<�������������@������������� �������;�	������	���������������;����;��������@����������������<��������	�����;���DH�� ���@����� ������� ��;�	��� A������������������;�������< ��L���=�	�����������L���=������������@���������;���< �����;��	� ��� <�= �>�=����@��� ��<����� ���� ����;�������������@�������<� ���;����	�����������������=����@���		���� ��;���� A����� ���<������;��������������� <��<< �����;�����=���	�� ���� ���<� ���;���� A�������=����	����������	�����������@���NO���� ���� <��P����@���N� D�� ���� <����Q?������������H�������R�F��=���	�� �@��D�� ����S� ���;���� A����F��=����T �� ������U�?��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX��YF���D
��G��?��U�
��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����SX�TF���XT��V�T�U�
��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����DXXS�SD���TW��V�T�U�
�Y� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����
�G��XT���U�
�N� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����
�G��XT���U����� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX���V�T�U����� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX��
�G��XT��TF�F����V
�E���U�B��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX������D�SVXZ�F��WD���U�B��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����SVXXD��V�T�U�B�Y� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�B?�G�U�B�N� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�B?�G����[�� ���Q?�
�G��XT�V�\�TW�
Z��GBW��D�T�Z��V�?���XT����[�� ���Q?�
Z��GBW��D�IT�ZJ��V�?���XT�U����� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW��XZ�D��TF�GXT�DXV��V�T�E���U���Y� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X����XZ�D��TF�GXT�DXV��V�T�E���U���N� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X���V�WB��TW��V�T�U���[� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X���WDX�TF�TW��V�T�U���U� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�
��G��V�
]
���
��V�T�D�� ���� <��;�������������@�������<� ���;���� A��������� �������������;����=������������;���=�����������< ���;����=�DF��������F�	�	���	O��;�	��= ���� =�@��; 	�������;�����������������;����=��;��>�����H����������;�	�����		�������������	�����;��	�̂�� <��;��������������  ������;���;��>������H��������	�=�����	��;��@���������	��<����;�������������������;���=������������	���@�������	�̂����	 �������	����;���������������� ����C���� <��;��@��������  �������_�������	���� ����_��������	����< ���;���C��������  ���������	� <��;���;��>�����H�������������� ����B?�G�	;���	�=����@���������< ���;���� A�������;�	���������	�����������@���[O���� ���� <�P����=���	�� �@���������

àbcdefg�hgijkalj�m̀n�ò hppqorsthqpsuvwusx̀ phsyvzhrxvxov{z



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

���!���"� ������ ����#$�%�&��'���	�(�)�����* ��+�'��,��-�����.�������&��'����+ �� ������/0#��� #$�%��1�+�/0#��� #$�%�(223��1�+�/0#�0� ��(3124�&��5(��
�/0#�/� #$�%�
�%��2+
�/0#�"� #$�%�&����1
�/0#�6� #$�%�
%#�&�1�
�/0#�7� #$�%�%2+�(21
�/0+�0� #$�%��8�&�.�	��� ���,���9����'���	�� �!����� ����*� ���,�����'����	���* ���,�����-$������������!������������,��9�#$�%����'���	�� �!��������* ���,����'��,��-�����.���������������������'����!���� ������� ��,���� :����* ����������������'���	��;<=>�?�@�ABCD=EBFG�HFGEIFJ�KEI<EDCBD=��,�� ��������	� ��� *�' �-�����L�* ������� ������%+	�* ���,����'�	�	���	�����,�	��� :����� ������������,���,���M�,�	������	�� ���� ��		���� ��,�� �������(�M��	�	�����# '�����������,�	�	�������,����,������	����	�	����'������	 ������� ���������,������!������� � �������NL�N�	�����M�,�	���� ��		�������OL���	 ����������� ���������,��	��������
%�&��������� ���� :�����',��,�� ����**���� ���,�����	 ��� *��,���P�	���������	����	�	����� ��� �	��� �������Q��� ��������� ��� ��� ���������		�	�!��'�����,�	��� :���������,��
%�&��������� ���� :�����',������ ��������,�� ���������*��P�!��������	�����������,�	���)�	�����,���%�� �� �����	���,���%+�* ���,���P�	���������	����	�	�����*�����,���,����	�*� ���,��
%�&��������� ���� :��������� ��������	 ��,����,��������,�	��,������!������� � �������������,���	�����M�,�	�� ���,���M�,�	������	�� ��� ��L��� ��,�	�������,��* �� '����'����!�����* ���������,�	���	-R�S�(���	���,���%+�* ���,���P�	���������	����	�	������	��������� �����,���,����	�*� ���,��
%�&��������� ���� :��������� ��������,���'������� '�	�����M�,�	�� ������ ���	���� ��� ��� ��,���M�,�	�� ������ ���S�% �������� �	�P������'��������L�'��,������� ������'������ ������ ���,���%+	���,��������� *��,�	�������� �����������	��	�� ��  ��������'��,�������8%�����������	��**�	 ��,���� �	��		�����!������� ���� ������* ���� ��� ��	���������������, � � ����,�������!��������������� ���� '������� ������ ��������,����,���M�,�	�� ��	�����M�,�	������	�� ��� ����TUVWXUYZ[VU\]�S� ÛXW\U_�̀ab�cdY�efU�UgW\eWhi�_WiU\eUY�\j\eUk�lWVV�[U�WhmVn_U_�Wh�efU�cWhZV�_U\Wih�\oUmWcWmZeWdh\p�

qrstuvwx�yxz{|r}{�~q���qy�������y���������q�y����y��������



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$%�#&�'#()�*++,-$./#0+1�23�456��789�:;<�=56�6>?@=?AB�C?B6@=6<�@D@=6E�F?GG�H6�<6I?@6CJ�K@@LE?AB�=5K=�E;C?:?MK=?;A@�=;�KGG;F�@?ABG6NO5K@6�C?B6@=?;A�;O6<K=?;A�MKA�H6�?EOG6E6A=6C�=5<;LB5�O<;B<KEE?AB�;<�@;:=FK<6�M;A=<;G�M5KAB6@P�85KAB6@�=5K=�<6QL?<6�=56�E;C?:?MK=?;A�;:�6>?@=?AB�5K<CFK<6R?A@=<LE6A=K=?;A�;<�KCC?=?;A�;:�A6F�5K<CFK<6R?A@=<LE6A=K=?;A�K<6�A;=�?AMGLC6C�?A�=5?@�@M;O6�;:�F;<SP�TUVW�X�Y�Z[\U]̂�_̀Za�aVV̂]�b̂cdV]̂e��f�� ��������	� ��� g�h �i������ ������������������f��������		���j���	������	� ������	��������h�	��f���k����h ���l��g ����f�	������������������ �����f����	�����	�� ��������m h�����������f�	�	�������n�	�����f����f�	�o��������� ��f���� p���������	�� ���� �� �������� ��f���		�������	�������������h����f��������n�������q� � ��r�������������������������������� ���������� �������s����h�������������n�������q�tt	��	h���f����������	g ����	s��	�h�����	���h���	��������� ������� ��� ��f���h����g ���f��g �� h����	�	���	u�v�w�x�	���������������������	�� ���	�	���	��v���w�������������	�� ���	�	���	��v��������	�	��oo����	�	�����v�jw��	�	����������������	�� ���	�	���	��v�y�h�z ����������������������	�� ���	�	���	��v�y�h�{� ��t ��� ��
�	�����v�w���	����y ����qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|��v���������t����g����}�
��������	�qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|��v�
�� ������t����g����
�������~�	�������������
��������	�qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|���6G?I6<KHG6@��v��OCK=6C�������@@6=��6B?@=6<�:;<�������7N2�������=D�?A�����>M6G�:;<EK=P�TUVW���Y�a�d\��dĉV]̂e��UV���e���d�c�̀�U��U]d����f�� ��������	� ��� g�h �i����������f����	���� g��� ��	� ���	�� �� ����� ���f������	������	�����������g� ���f����h���w�	�	����	 ��f����f����f��� ����� ������	�� ���o��� �������� ��f�����	�����j����g�����	�	������f����������h �i�� ���g ���f�	��� p������������� �	�	���� g���������	�	� g��� ��	� ����������	����f��� ����	�g����� ��������� �������g� ��j����� �� �g�����f����f����������g��h ���o���������o����m h�������f��g������	�	���	��������������g��	f ������f��������������������������h��f�������������������������������	�� ����������o�������������
o	�n������	�		� �	�h��f������������ ��f����� �������� ��� �����	������� �f��� ��� �	�������������f� � �������� �g������ �������������	���f��h �i�� ���� ���f�	���	i�������	��f��g �� h���u�v�t  ������� ��h��f��n����������g������	�� ��������������f� � ��� ��� �	��v�w���� ��������������� �g������ �� ��� �	�	���o���g ��j����g �����������f� � ���	�q�� ��	� �������	��������������������� �g������ �	����������������
�g������������s�����o� � ����������������	�	���	����	 ������ ��������������������������������������������� 	����g ����� ��g �����f�������������� ���� h�� �����	 ���

� ¡¢£¤¥¦�§¦̈©ª «©�¬��®�§̄ °̄®±²³§°̄²́µ¶́²·�̄ §²̧µ¹§±·µ·®µº¹



���������	�
����������������������������������	���������������������������� ���

����!��!��!�

"�#!�����$�%!�&	'!��%��'�������!������%��'��(������	����������!���!�	��		�!��$����!�����������'�!�!��������!�(������!���!��!���(!�%����%��'�����'����!)������	�����"�����������������'������!�*���+
��!��!�������'���!�����	!��!(����������	������	����'�!�!���	��	������!��!(��'�����(����������!��'��������	�����������������,������!	���	�������(!���'��	��������	�	������-./012��'��������!������%�(��������	��'�������,������������!��'����!)������	���,����,!����	�'��	��'����%�,!�����	�	����������'�,�������!��!(�*�3�	���������������4��������!���������!4��������5���6������!���!��'����!)�����!�	�����!���!	���7��'�����	����������(���!(�588�� + ��!��!��������'���		!�������%!�&����	����������'����	&	���	���,���$,!������	������!(��'��,�����,����	&��	����	�����������,���6�����������������,���&�!%��!(���	&	�%��'�������������������!(��((!��������!	���	�������������4'�,������9������������	�	'!%�������,���6��������������	�%'����	�!���%�	������������,���6� ����������:�����
������,����	&���	&� :�������!�����;�
���		���	��
��!������������������!��		��!�#!�(����#������<�=��#�������� 5>>���+���;�9�%�:!�����(!��*���	����?�������
�	���� 5�+8�@@�� �;��������*����@��*���	����A�	�:���(�������	��
���� 5���8B��@�;�*�3��<�'�,�������!�������!��(�����!�	� 5@> ��>��B�;�#'����	��!�*��!����!��*��%���	� 5C8�@6>D�6�;�<��!����!(���=&E������������:������� 5C>6�� 6D�>�;�*���	��!��#!���!��
��������	� 5B8�B>B�8�;��������������		���<���	���� 5� �8++�+�;������*���	����A�	�
��,,�����������!�� 5 ��8B@�FGHIJ�KLMNOLMNH�PGQ�R� STTUVRWR�7��������������'��!��!��������!�,��!(�(��'���	��������!��!����������(!���'�	����!��������!)�����
'!����!���X��������������!������(!�����!��!��'��������X�	��!�	������	������	�&�!%��
�����������#�<YZZY��9A�9��<
���9#����A��'�����A���,����'�*�������� <�)�	'�*!����������������:#������������=��=#'����� ��!)�������������A��[<:*\,��������!	��	\��4'�,�����

]̂ _̀abcd�edfgĥig�j]k�l]emmnlopqenmprstrpu]mepvsweousulsxw



�������� �����	
������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ��� �� �� ����
� �!�
��
�  ������������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ����!�
��
� " ������� "� ������� ���#
$%�������
 &
��
�� �����
������
� ��������
 '�
�����
����%������� �������()*+, -.// -012 -032 -311 -3.. -331 3.4//-����� -./2 -01. -035 -3.1 -3.6 -3357 ���
����
����
�����8�������
������ ����8� ���
���9�:7� �����$;<; =>?@�ABCDEFCG@ ; H ;I JH K ; LH M;KN;KH MIOI PM�������� M;KNOOQ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STUUVWXDCB ; ; Y Q K ; ;L MHNZOI M;ZL PM�������� MJN;O; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[T7U7;<H AF>P=>?@�\]]F̂XDC@X]D�_>>@XD̀ H H H H K K Q M;NZJZ M;KY PM�������� MHNKYJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTSb[;<J cX@>�dX?X@?�eJf K JH JH Q K K OH M;ON;QY MZJI IKKM������� M;QNOHK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7VTUaS;<Y E>g>B]h�iX]jXD�_]̂>BkDCBl?X?�]G�c@F>??�=>?@�EC@C K H Y ;I K K HH MYNHLY MHQI PM�������� MYNLYK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTmbS_]̂>B�\CBXnFC@X]D�CD̂�E>g>B]ho>D@ H H JH HY K K IK M;HNJHO MOQK PM�������� M;JN;KO K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7[T7SU;<L p?@XoC@>�=XoXD̀�G]F�_iq�\]Dg>F?X]D�iC?>̂�]D�_]̂>B�q>?rB@?E>@>FoXD>�qAP;�=F>C@o>D@�\ChCsX@l�iC?>̂�]D�_]̂>B� Y Q H H K K ;I MYN;ZO MHKQ PM�������� MYNYKL K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTbSmE>g>B]h�=Xo>BXD>�G]F�_iq�E>?X̀Dt\]D?@Frs@X]D H Y Y K K K ;K MHNLOK M;JK PM�������� MHNOKK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTUSS;<I c@F>??�=>?@�CD̂�qAP;�\ChCsX@l�q>h]F@EFCG@ H ;I Y JI H Y IY M;JNKKH MQJH PM�������� M;JNQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7[TV[bWXDCB ; Y H Q K H ;O MJNYZK MHH; PM�������� MJNO;; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[TU77a �
u�"��
������	�
��
��v
������$��
8H<; E>@CXB>̂�kDCBl?X?�]G�i]XB>F�cl?@>o�w?XD̀�wĥC@>̂�ABCD@�EC@C K H Q Q K K ;Q MJNOK; MHJY PM�������� MJNZJL K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[Tx[mH<H q>gX>y�epf�zC?�CD̂�{]@�jC@>F�cl?@>o?�CD̂�k|_E�q>}rXF>o>D@? K H ;Y K K K ;I MJNLQ; MHKQ PM�������� MJNOQZ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[TUVxH<J ~n@CXDtq>gX>y�\rFF>D@�EX̀>?@>F�zC?�EC@C�CD̂�d>D̂]F�\]]F̂XDC@X]D K K Q K K K Q M;NOJK M;KY PM�������� M;NQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TV[bH<Y e�f�i]XB>F�cX@XD̀cX@>�dX?X@ K K ;I K K K ;I MJNYIK MHKQ IKKM������� MYNHIQ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTa�VAF>BXoXDCFl��Cl]r@?�CD̂�\]?@? K Q YY K K K LH M;;NOHO MIOI PM�������� M;HNYKJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7aTbS[\]]F̂XDC@X]D�_>>@XD̀�G]F�AF>G>FF>̂�cX@> J I H; Q K K JQ MQNL;O MYZY PM�������� MZNK;; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RxTS77H<L pgCBrC@>�epf�Ez�iB]y>F�cl?@>o~n@CXDtq>gX>y��DG]�G]F�epf�Ez�iB]y>F? K K Q K K K Q M;NOJK M;KY PM�������� M;NQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TV[bE>g>B]h�AF]s>??�_]̂>B�G]F�Ez�cl?@>o H Y ;I HY K K YI MZNY;Z MLZQ PM�������� M;KNK;O K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STS7Uq>gX>y�_>>@XD̀�@]�EX?sr??�WXD̂XD̀?�CD̂�q>s]oo>D̂>̂�_]̂XGXsC@X]D? H H H H K K Q M;NZJZ M;KY PM�������� MHNKYJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTSb[H<I EFCyXD̀?N�ch>sXGXsC@X]D?N�CD̂�~hXDX]D�]G�\]?@EFCyXD̀?c@Frs@rFCB Q ;I JH IY QK ;H H;H MJON;HJ MHNOLI PM�������� MJZNQOZ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[xTVUx_>s�CDXsCB ;Q JK IK ;HK ;LK ;Q JZI MIZNZOQ MLN;YQ PM�������� MOLN;HI K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RUmT7a�pB>s@FXsCB K K K K K K K MK MK PM�������� MK K ;L LK ;HK ;J; K J;I MYZNJIJ MK MYZNJIJ MHNYIQ Rm7TV[7�D?@Fro>D@C@X]D�CD̂�\]D@F]B? K K K K K K K MK MK PM�������� MK K K IH K ;J; K ;ZJ MJ;NYKQ MK MJ;NYKQ M;NLOK R[aTxUVch>sXGXsC@X]D? K Q ;I HY JH K QK M;YN;OZ M;NKYK PM�������� M;LNH;Z K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7mTa7xcrnoX@@CB�AF>hCFC@X]DIKPA>Fs>D@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7ZKPA>Fs>D@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7;KKPA>Fs>D@� K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7iX̂�c>@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7~hXDX]D�]G�\]?@�eIK�N�ZK�N�;KK�f ; Y Q ;H K H HO MLNYZO MJL; PM�������� MLNQYQ K K ;L K K K ;L MJNHHL MK MJNHHL M;I; RxTa[b|kt|\�\�>s��eG]F�CBB�E>BXg>FCnB>?f HY HY K K K K YQ M;JNQHL MIHY PM�������� M;YNYYZ HK K K K K K HK MIN;HK MK MIN;HK MJKI RaSTVUm[ �����
�	���7bT�	�
��
��&���"
�
�������
�����$J<; wĥC@>�E�_�;YN�EX̀>?@>F�zC?�i>D>GXsXCB�w?>�c@r̂l H Y HY ;I K Y LK M;KNHKK MILK PM�������� M;KNQLK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STVmS

��v�"����9�:7�����������
��������
�����aaSbb7U:���:aa��������8��
�����
����
��$ ������ "��u������ ���u
�� ���
����������������
'

����8��
�:��8
��8
�������[ �����������

��T�����

����������������������������������� ��¡¢£¤¥¦¡¢�§��̈����©ª�������������©«��¬§¡�®���̄��§��̈����°�±¤¤¢££²�����̄�����±�³�́��µ��³¶��¶·̧�¹º����̄�����́»¼¡½¤¤ ¼�¤¢�¤¢¤¤�¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅ�ÆÅÇÈÉ¿ÊÈ�Ë¾
Ì�Í¾ÆÎÎÏÍÐÑÒÆÏÎÑÓÔÕ

ÓÑÖ¾ÎÆÑ×ÔØÆÐÖÔÖÍÔÙ
Ø



�������� �����	
������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ��� �� �� ����
� �!�
��
�  ������������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ����!�
��
� " ������� "� ������� ���#
$%�������
 &
��
�� �����
������
� ��������
 '�
�����
����%������� �������()*+, -.// -012 -032 -311 -3.. -331 3.4//-����� -./2 -01. -035 -3.1 -3.6 -335
�789"9���:�;<�����������
��������
�����==>??<@;A��;==9�������B��
�C���
����
��$ ������ "��D������ ���D
�� E��
����������������

'

����B��
�;��B
��B
�������F �����������

��G�9���
? 	�'��:
������������������������HIJ KLMNLO�KLPQRS�TRUONVWX Y Y JZ Z Y Y [[ \H]̂[H \[_Z `\�������� \H]_JY Y Y H Y Y Y H \_ZY \Y \_ZY \Ha bcG@<FHI[ dQVSePf�gNfL�hNXNf�iQR�dQVSNfNQV�jXXLXXkLVf�UVS�lmLRUfNQVUn�KLMNLOgNfL�hNXNf�UVS�dQQRSNVUfNQVoLPpUVNPUn�UVS�gfRePfeRUn Y Z JY Z Y Y [[ \H]__̂ \[_Z ZYY\������� \̂]qqJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bcG@@<rstd Y _ _ Y Y Y JZ \a]uHJ \[Y_ ZYY\������� \H]qHu Y Y JZ Y Y Y JZ \a]HHY \J]̂YY \H]uHY \[Hq bvGvFwgekkURx�TQPekLVfNVW�yNVSNVWX�UVS�KLPQkkLVSUfNQVX Y H _ Y Y Y J[ \[]_aZ \ĴZ `\�������� \[]uu[ Y Y JZ Y Y Y JZ \a]HHY \Y \a]HHY \Jq[ bwGw>?KLMNLO�oLLfNVW�iQR�yNVSNVWX�UVS�KLPQkkLVSUfNQVX [ Z Z [ Y Y JZ \a]uJY \[Y_ `\�������� \H]JJ_ Y Y _ Y Y Y _ \J]q[Y \Y \J]q[Y \_Z bcGv=?HIa Tso�Jqg�̀�Tjyz�KLpU{NnNfUfNQVgPek�zpNP|LVNVW�jnfLRVUfNMLX�jVUnxXNX Y _ [Y Y Y Y [_ \Z]̂aq \aZH `\�������� \Z]uYJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bwGv><TLMLnQm�dRNfLRNU�UVS��KL}eNRLkLVfX Y Z _ H Y Y J_ \H]Yu_ \[aH `\�������� \H]aa[ Y Y Y _ Y Y _ \J]YuZ \Y \J]YuZ \̂^ bcG?~=lmNVNQV�Qi��RQ{U{nL�dQXf Y [ _ J Y Y JJ \[]HZY \JHa `\�������� \[]ZYa Y Y Y _ Y Y _ \J]YuZ \Y \J]YuZ \̂^ bFG@c?TRUif�Tso [ _ J[ J[ Y H a_ \_]YYJ \HuH `\�������� \_]Hû Y Y Y [H Y Y [H \a][__ \Y \a][__ \JZH b<<Gv?~yNVUn�Tso [ H _ [ Y [ J_ \H]Y[H \[aH `\�������� \H][̂_ Y Y Y H Y Y H \̂H_ \Y \̂H_ \[q b?G~FFHIH TRUONVWX]�gmLPNiNPUfNQVX]�UVS�lmNVNQV�Qi�dQXfTRUONVWX��aY��ge{kNffUn�TLkQnNfNQV Y Y J[ Y _ Y [Y \a]Ẑu \[ZY `\�������� \a]uJu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bFGv<vgfRePfeRUn Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b>oLPpUVNPUn Y [ aH Y [Y Y Ẑ \JY]̂Ẑ \q[_ `\�������� \JJ][ua Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<<G=vFsVXfRekLVfUfNQV�UVS�dQVfRQnX Y [ JZ Y Y Y J_ \H]YJa \[aH `\�������� \H][Hq Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b?G=?@TRUONVWX���LxQVS�aY��TLkQnNfNQV Z Ĵ Ĵ Ĥ _̂ Z ĴH \[q]Jq[ \[]YY[ `\�������� \[u]JqH Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b=vG<@?gfRePfeRUn Y Y _Y _Y J[Y Y [_Y \Hq]Haa \a]ZHY `\�������� \̂J]Yqa Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bc<G>@FoLPpUVNPUn J_ [_ Ĥ JYJ JJY J_ a[u \̂u]HHa \H][qq `\�������� \Za]q[Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bwFG@=>rnLPfRNPUn Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y [Y [Y Jâ ĴZ J[̂ _ HZH \_Y]JHq \q̂Y \_Y]_uq \H]YĤ b~?Gv?=sVXfRekLVfUfNQV�UVS�dQVfRQnX H H JZ [[ a[ H _[ \JH]a_Z \J]YZZ `\�������� \Ĵ]Ĥ[ Y Y JHY Y J[̂ JY [q̂ \H_]̂YY \q̂Y \Hu][̂Y \[]HZa bw@G<w?gmLPNiNPUfNQVX Y _ JZ [H a[ Y _Y \JH]Jqu \J]YHY `\�������� \Ĵ][Ju Y Y Ẑ Y Y Y Ẑ \J[]YHY \Y \J[]YHY \ZY[ b=@G~w<ge{kNffUn��RLmURUfNQVZỲ�LRPLVf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<uỲ�LRPLVf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<JYỲ�LRPLVf� Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<�NS�gLf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<lmNVNQV�Qi�dQXf��ZY�]�uY�]�JYY�� J Z J[ J[ Y H â \q]JHu \Ĥ^ `\�������� \q]ZYH Y Y Y HY Y Y HY \̂]H_Y \Y \̂]H_Y \[qH b<FGFc~�j��d�dpLP|��iQR�Unn�TLnNMLRU{nLX� â â Y Y Y Y qY \[Y]JZJ \uJY `\�������� \[J]YqJ qZ Y Y Y Y Y qZ \[a][̂Z \Y \[a][̂Z \J]JZa b?cG?v>c  ����
�����	
B������	��D���ÎJ �Lf�dRLSNf�iQR�TLkQ�TRUONVWX�KLkQMLS�yRQk��RQ�LPfTLkQ�TRUONVW�TLMLnQmkLVf�fpRQeWp�aY��TLXNWV Y Y [ _ H Y JH \[]a_[ \J_[ `\�������� \[]̂ZH Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b=Gcw?yenn�dQXf�iQR�TLkQ�TRUONVWX�fQ�TLnLfL��yenn�dRLSNf�jkQeVf� [̀ `̂ ù J̀_ [̀[ [̀ `̂_ �\JY][qq� �\q̂H� `\�������� �\JJ]YaJ� Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y �b<<G>F<�w :
B�#������<=������
�������"�����ZIJ dRLSNf�iQR�TRUONVWX�KLkQMLS�yRQk��RQ�LPf Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y [̀̂ `̂Y J̀̂Y [̀YY [̀̂Y J̀[̂ _̀YY �\J[u]_[̂� �\Jq̂��\JaY]YYY� �\Z]̂YY� �b<FwGc>>�ZIJ jSSNfNQVUn�gpLLfX�yQR�oQRL�dQkmnL��KTz��eNnSNVW��hjd Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y JY [̂ Ẑ _̂ JJY ZY Y \̂q]̂_̂ \Y \̂q]̂_̂ \[]_qu bw>G?w?@ 	�
����� ������������
�
�qIJ KLMNXL��d��iQR�r�NXfNVW�TNWLXfLRX _ [H [_ HY [H Y J[H \[̂]aZZ \J]ZJ[ `\�������� \[Z]uq_ [ H ^ Y Y Y JJ \[]qqu \Y \[]qqu \Jau b=vG~vwqI[ KLMNLO�oLLfNVWX��Z�kLLfNVWX� J[ [H H[ [H Y Y JY[ \[a]̂Zq \J]a[Z `\�������� \[H]_ua H H Z Y Y Y JH \a]ZYZ \Y \a]ZYZ \J_Y b=~Gw@v~ C����
�9�C�����
��:
���
�_IJ �mSUfL�jXXLf�KLWNXfLR Y [ JZ H_ Y H qY \J[]u_u \uJY `\�������� \Ja]_uu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<FG~vvv ����	�
��
��&�������������#�������uIJ dQQRSNVUfL�ONfp�r}eNmkLVf�oUVeiUPfeRLRX Y H _ [H Y Y aZ \q]YuY \HZ_ `\�������� \q]̂̂ _ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b@Gcc~uI[ TLMLnQm�zLPpVQnQWx�lmfNQVX Y H J[ [H Y Y HY \q]û^ \̂[Y `\�������� \_]Hq̂ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b~G?@cuIa dQVSePf��QR|XpQm��NVPnI��RLm�UVS�yQnnQO�em� a Z JJ Ja Y Y aa \q][HY \H[u `\�������� \q]ZZu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b@GwwvuIH �RLmURL�Tso�ug�jffUPpkLVf�iQR�gLnLPfLS�zLPpVQnQWx�UVS�jmmRQUPp [ _ JZ J[ Y [ HY \_]Za[ \̂[Y `\�������� \u]Ĵ[ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bvG<c=����� <w~ ?>= ~w? v<c wc> <c> FG<?v w<?G?cvb��� ?>GvF@b��� =G?>>b���� wc@G@vwb��� <>@ <~ ?=~ =?c F@= ;?@ @w~ =>vG<@=b�� =G~=cb����� =<<Gvv@b�� <>Gw>>b��� b> b> b> b> b> ~~>GFvFb���
������������������������� �����¡�¢£¤¡�¥¦§̈©ª¥¦�«��¬����®������������£̄ ��°«±¥�²�� ³��«��¬����́£µ̈ ¦̈§§¶�¡���³�����µ�·�̧��¹��·º��º»¼�½¾¡���³�����̧¿À±¥Á±̈̈ À�̈¦�̈¦̈ �̈ÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉ�ÊÉËÌÍÃÎÌ�ÏÂ

Ð�ÑÂÊÒÒÓÑÔÕÖÊÓÒÕ×ØÙ
×ÕÚÂÒÊÕÛØÜÊÔÚØÚÑØÝ

Ü



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2B 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

RMPU Project Construction Contract Change Order Ratification

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880 for the construction of
the Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main groundwater recharge improvements. The project will yield
approximately 2,921 acre-feet per year (AFY) of captured storm water and 2,905 AFY of
recycled water for groundwater recharge. As part of the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU),
Chino Basin Watermaster is fully funding the stormwater improvements with available SRF
loans and nearly $9.0 million in grants. During construction, MNR potholed the path of the new
30-inch force main pipeline on Jurupa Road and identified buried utilities not shown on the
construction plans. These additional utilities required revisions to the bid documents to avoid
conflicts. The changes resulted in added cost of materials and labor above MNR's bid price.
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is requesting ratification of the change order in the
amount of $188,188.27 with MNR for the additional material cost for manufacturing the pipe to
meet the revised alignment and avoid utility conflicts. Currently, IEUA is still in negotiation
with MNR on the final price to implement the revised plans. Due to material availability
concerns and to reduce delay on the project, IEUA is requesting ratification of the change order
on just the 30-inch pipeline. This is a 1.2% increase to MNR’s contract.

1. Ratify the change order for the construction contract for the Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main,
Project No. RW15003.06, to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27.

RW15003.06/Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main

None.

1000 10300 126100 4235000 RW15003

07/13/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically
the Groundwater Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in
the region through strategic, cost-effective partnerships, and development.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880.

On June 21, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded consulting engineering services for all RMPU
projects under RW15003.00, to Carollo Engineers, Inc. for the not-to-exceed amount of
$1,510,628.

The RMPU Project was under a comprehensive Program Environmental Impact Report which
the Board adopted as complete on March 15, 2017. Within this report specific mitigation
measures are a part of the Project that will be implemented under the attached Mitigation
Measures and Reporting Program (MMRP).

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)



 
 

Attachment 1 



Recharge Master Plan Update Project 
Change Order Ratification

Joel Ignacio, PE 
Senior Engineer 

July 20, 2022



2

Project Location

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal
Stormwater Recycled Water

San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100
Lower Day Basin 993 -
Victoria Basin 75 120
Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



3

Project Background/Scope

Installation of a 
stormwater force main 
system (pump station)

New Recharge Facility 

Increase stormwater diversion

Added recharge basin

Project Benefit:
• Increase stormwater recharge to 2,921 acre-feet per year
• Increased recycled water 2,905 acre-feet per year (with RP-3)



4

Change of Conditions
• Initial plans (Bid Documents) 

—Design documented approximately 
44 buried utilities

• Constructor’s field investigation
—Identified 89 buried utilities

• Immediate changes made to bid sheets
—Designer updated pipeline 

alignment
—Revised 17 sheets of the 

construction plans
• Impacts

—Additional material cost on 
manufacturing pipe (this action)

—Changes in laying the pipe 
(pending negotiation on final cost 
~$2.5M)

Revised Construction Plan (1 of 17)

Initial Construction Plan (1 of 17)

Additional 
utilities/relocate new 

deeper



5

Project Budget

Description Cost
Design Services (Actuals) $1,960,940 
Preliminary Design Contract $269,300 
Design Contract $1,500,000 
Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin $191,640 
Construction Services (Projected/actuals) $1,231,044 
Design Consultant Construction Services (projected/actual) $397,977 
IEUA Construction Services (projected) $833,067 
Construction (Projected/Actuals) $17,028,968 
Construction Contract (MNR’s Contract) $15,480,880 
Ratification on Additional Pipe Material for Revised Pipe Alignment (this action) $188,189 
Remaining Contingencies $1,359,900 

Total Project Cost (for RW15003.06): $20,220,952 
Total Project Cost (for RW15003.05 & RW15003.06) $24,004,424 
Current Budget (for RW15003.00): $24,004,424 



6

Recommendations

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically the Groundwater 
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region through strategic, cost-effective 

partnerships, and development.

• Ratify the change order for the construction contract for Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27.



   Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              3A 

 

INFORMATION 
                         ITEM 



Operations & Maintenance Department 
Quarterly Update

Lucia Fuertez Diaz
Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs 

July 2022



2

Safety Statistics

As of 6/15/2022

A recordable injury is an injury that resulted in more than first aid treatment. 
* hours worked does not include June hours rate will be lower



3

Stretch Exercise Pilot Program

• Regional Plant No. 4
—Sewer Collections, Operations 

& Maintenance staff
• Team Feedback

—Enjoying the morning 
stretch

—Feel better throughout 
the work shift

May 2022

May 2022



• Agency Wide: NPDES permit is 
updated 

• RP-1 and RP-4: Install of CL2 
analyzers at RP-1 & RP-4 

• RP-5: Title V AQMD permit 
• RP-1 and RP-5: Annual Title V 

AQMD Inspections
• Educational Outreach: Facility 

tours and participated in several 
career fairs.  

4

Operations 
May 2022

May 2022

April 2022



• Sewer Collections Team 
hosted the first ever Multi-Agency 
Sanitary Sewer Overflow Drill.

• Total of 6 Agencies/Cities
• Training consisted of multiple SSO 

simulations and bypass support.
• Hosted first meeting between 

member Agencies for the Sewer 
Collections and Environmental 
Compliance teams.

5

Mutual Aid Coordination 



• RP-2 Stockpile at drying 
beds 

• CCWRF ammonia due to 
local manufacture

• CCWRF foaming incident
• Increase in Fats, Oils, and 

Grease (FOG) & Ragging 

6

Operational Challenges 



• Celebrate IERCA’s milestones
—Selling 3 million cubic yards of 

compost
—US Composting Council 

Manufacturer of the Year Award
—California Water Environment 

Association Safety Plant of the 
Year Award

7

IERCA Update



• Members of Technical Resources 
Division leadership attended.

• Collaborations with other leaders.
• LA City Sanitation leaders provided 

a plant tour and overview of their 
incident.

8

Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant Tour



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              3B 

 

INFORMATION 
                         ITEM 



4th Quarter 
Planning & Resources Update

Pietro Cambiaso
Acting Director of Planning & Resources

July 2022



• Air Quality and Odor Survey
• Pretreatment and Source Control
• Wastewater & Recycled Water
• Groundwater Recharge
• IEUA Flow & Loading Study
• Dry Year Yield (DYY) Program
• Chino Basin Day

2

Topics



• South Coast Air Quality Management District
—No compliance issues
—RP-1 and RP-5 Title V inspection (4/7/2022)

• Quarterly Odor Survey
—Voluntary not a compliance requirement
—Pre-determined locations near the perimeter 

of each IEUA facility
—Panelists from member agencies and IEUA 

staff
• Intensity rating 
• Odor description

3

Air Quality and Odor Survey



• CCWRF high pH Incident (5/26/2022)
— Impact to Operations

• Flow diversion to RP-1 and equalization 
basin

• Increased chlorine demand
—Source found from joint investigation

• Collaboration with City of Chino
• Ice manufacturer anhydrous ammonia leak
• Enforcement and cost recovery pending

4

Pretreatment and Source Control

Sewerage System Permits 
Issued

Inspections 
Completed

Notice of Violations
Issued

Notice of Violations
Resolved

Regional Sewerage System 4 6 4 1

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System North 
(NRWS and Etiwanda Wastewater Line) 2 16 3 1

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System South 
(Inland Empire Brine Line) 0 7 0 0



• Compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit

• Waste discharge requirements, master recycling permit, and NPDES permit adoption (6/3/2022)
—Effective 8/1/2022

• Laboratory, operations and maintenance staff training
• Implementation of new monitoring and reporting requirements

—Significant Revisions
• Asset management program 
• Climate change action plan 
• Toxicity requirements 
• 1,2,3-Trichloropropane (1,2,3-TCP) monitoring
• PFAS monitoring

5

Wastewater & Recycled Water



• 1,2,3-Trichloropropane (1,2,3-TCP) Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) Exceedance
—Accelerated weekly monitoring
— Investigation and Mitigation Plan

• Method assessment plan
• Fate and transport

• PFOA Notification Level (NL) Exceedance
—Accelerated weekly monitoring
—Corrective action report (May 2022)
—Collaboration with other Agencies and Associations

• Operation and Maintenance Streambed Alteration Agreement
—Submitted amendment and extension application to California Department of Fish and Wildlife
—Long-term maintenance agreement for groundwater recharge facilities

6

Groundwater Recharge



• Evaluate wastewater flow volumes and strength in 
various regional sewer trunkline locations

—Assist with growth forecasting and IEUA treatment plant 
improvement projects

—Validate sewer hydraulic model calibration
—Support Expanded Return to Sewer Study team to 

improve study accuracy

• Approved project in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 - 2031/32 
Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan

—Consultant will be hired through Planning Master 
Services Contract

—Project start date July 2022
—Project completion August 2023

7

IEUA Flow & Loading Study



• Groundwater Storage Program with Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD), and 
Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM)

• Program provides up to 100,000 acre-feet (AF) of storage                                                          
in a MWD storage account in the Chino Basin

—MWD stored 63,324 AF (2017 – 2022)
—63,324 AF of withdrawals (2017 – 2022)
—Account storage balance is currently at 0 AF

8

Dry Year Yield (DYY) Program



• Annual meeting to provide updates on ongoing and future projects, and discuss 
coordination efforts with the Regional Water Quality Control Board

• Topics discussed:
—Maximum benefit salt and nutrient management activities
—Chino Desalter Authority operations 
—Status of compliance
—Hydraulic control analysis 
—Chino Basin Program
—Water supply and drought 

9

Chino Basin Day



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              3C 

 

INFORMATION 
                         ITEM 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
July 2022

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM
Principal Engineer

July 2022



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction
Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 
Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters
Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award
Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone
Jan 11

Project Completion
Jan 10

Day 715 of 1640 = 44%

Data date: 6/30/2022

RP-5: Project Status

2

Role Firm Contract This Month’s 
Payment Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $334,061,867 $8,106,356 $152,484,426 46%

Designer Parsons $33,670,711 $360,000 $30,935,537 92%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $400,000 $8,467,536 40%



3

RP-5: Project Change Status

Amount Quantity

Original Contract $329,982,900 

Change Order (CO) $ 4,078,967 132

Request For Deviation (RFD) $ 3,019,815 145

Changes Total (CO+RFD) $7,098,782 264

% Change of Contract 2.2%

% of Contingency Used 21.5%

Change Type Amount  
$ Millions

% Of 
Changes

Design Errors & Omissions $ 3.1 44%

Agency Requested $2.6 37%

Differing Site Conditions $ 2.0 28%

Contractor Requested $ -0.7 -10%



4

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff
• WML Craft: 219
• WML Project: 34
• IEUA & CM: 17
• Total: 270



5

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



6

RP-5: Major Activities

Fine Screens



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers



8

RP-5: Major Activities

Main Odor Control



9

RP-5: Major Activities

Blower Building #2



10

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1 Pump Gallery & Basins



11

RP-5: Major Activities

Emergency Overflow Pond Pumps Station



12

RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building
Exterior

Sludge Feed

Polymer Room



13

RP-5: Major Activities

Acid Phase Digester Building
Interior Exterior



14

RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digester Building

Interior Exterior



15

RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building
Interior Exterior



16

RP-5: Major Activities

Boiler Building



Questions?



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              3D 
 

 

INFORMATION 
                         ITEM 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jason Marseilles, PE

Manager of Engineering and Construction Management

July 2022



2

Project 
Location

Map



3

Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades 
Project Goal: Rehabilitate/Repair Existing Assets

Total Project Budget: $2.5M
Project Completion: January 2025
Design Percent Complete: 10%

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
(Current)

Stantec 
Consulting, Inc. $287k 0%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Biesiada, Josh

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Trott, Megan

Administrative Assistant: Wallace & Associates

Inspector: TBD

Existing Generator



4

RP-3 Basin Improvements
Project Goal: Increase Efficiency

Total Project Budget: $1.8M
Project Completion: July 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 75%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Wood & Associates

Administrative Assistant: GK & Associates

Inspector: Jones, Nick
Butterfly Valve

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design Carollo $137k 21%

Construction
(Current)

Metro 
Builders/James 

McMinn, Inc.
$705k 4%



5

NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek 
Project Goal: Extend Asset  Life

Total Project Budget: $2.3M
Project Completion: May 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 100%
Phase Consultant/

Contractor
Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design Michael Baker 
International $127k 305%

Construction
(Current) Charles King 

Company $1.4M -0.57%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Zughbi, Jamal

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ferrer, Karen

Administrative Assistant: Wood Consulting 

Inspector: GK & Associates


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D



